
 AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Motto:  "Opportunity Through Diversity; Unity Through Cooperation." 

Mission Statement: "The City of Watsonville is dedicated to improving the economic vitality, safety & living environment for the culturally 

rich Watsonville community, by providing leadership for the achievement of community goals & high quality, responsive public services."

Mayor Karina Cervantez, District 2 

Mayor Pro Tempore Felipe Hernandez, District 1

Lowell Hurst, Council Member, District 3
 Eduardo Montesino, Council Member, District 4 

Daniel Dodge, Council Member, District 5 

Trina Coffman-Gomez, Council Member, District 6 

Dr. Nancy A. Bilicich, Council Member, District 7 

Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

CIVIC PLAZA COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4
th

 FLOOR, 6
TH

 LEVEL PARKING
WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

Americans with Disabilities Act 

The Council Chambers is an accessible facility.  If you wish to attend a meeting and you will require 
assistance in order to attend and/or participate, please call the City Clerk's Office at least five (5) days 
in advance of the meeting to make arrangements. The City of Watsonville TDD number is (831) 763-
4075. 

Meetings are televised live on Charter Cable Communications Channel 70 and AT&T 

Channel 99. 

For information regarding this agenda or interpretation services, please call the City Clerk's Office at (831) 768-3040. 

INTERPRETATION SERVICES 
Spanish language interpretation is available 



 

1 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC021114.Docx 
2/6/2014 4:45 PM 

AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 
 

February 11, 2014 City Council Chambers  
  275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

 

4:30 P.M. 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine and will be 
acted upon as one consensus motion. Any items removed will be considered immediately after the consensus motion. 
The Mayor will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda. 

 
Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 
 
4.1 MOTION APPROVING COUNCIL MINUTES OF JANUARY 28, 2014  

 
4.2 RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH SANTA 

CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT FOR PARTNERSHIP IN THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF FIBER OPTIC LINES FROM THE WATSONVILLE CIVIC 
PLAZA TO THE WATSONVILLE TRANSIT CENTER LOCATED AT 475 

RODRIGUEZ STREET (Requested by Member Dodge) 
--Report 
--Resolution 
 

4.3 MOTION APPROVING LETTER TO SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION REQUESTING REPROGRAMMING OF 
FUNDS FOR THE HIGHWAY 1/HARKINS SLOUGH ROAD PROJECT 
(Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano) 
 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 

 
8.1 PROPOSED CHROMIUM 6 DRINKING WATER REGULATION & POTENTIAL 

ECONOMIC IMPACTS TO THE COMMUNITY (Recommended by Public Works & 
Utilities Director Palmisano) 
(a) Oral Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Expressing Concern about Significant Financial Impact of the 

Proposed California Department of Public Health’s Chromium-6 Drinking 
Water Regulation will have on our Community & Requesting Financial 
Support from the State to Comply with the Regulation 

 



 

2 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC021114.Docx 
2/6/2014 4:45 PM 

8.2 FEMA NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM BIGGERT- WATERS ACT 
INSURANCE RATE INCREASE (Recommended by Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano) 
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 

(e) Motion Receiving Update on FEMA’s National Flood Insurance Program 
and Biggert- Waters Act insurance rate increases, and  

(f) Motion Directing Staff to Send Letters to Senator Boxer, Senator 
Feinstein, & Congressman Farr Expressing Concerns Over Proposed 
Increases & Supporting Senate Bill S-1926, House Bill H. R. 3370 to 
Delay Increases While an Affordability Study is Completed 

 

5:30 P.M. 
 
 
10.0 CLOSED SESSION 

(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda will only be accepted by the City 

Council at this time. 
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council will now recess to discuss those items listed on the Closed Session 

Statement attached to the Agenda.  

 
6:30 P.M. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 

(This time is set aside for members of the general public to address the Council on any item not on the 
Council Agenda, which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. No action or 
discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Council Member may respond to 
statements made or questions asked, or may ask questions for clarification.  All matters of an 
administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to Council will be noted in the minutes 
and may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification and report. 
Any Council Member may place matters brought up under Oral Communications on a future agenda. 
ALL SPEAKERS ARE ASKED TO FILL OUT A BLUE CARD & LEAVE IT AT THE TABLE 
DESIGNATED NEAR THE PODIUM, GO TO THE PODIUM AND ANNOUNCE THEIR NAME AND 
ADDRESS IN ORDER TO OBTAIN AN ACCURATE RECORD FOR THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING.) 

 
3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
3.3 PRESENTATION REGARDING UNITED WAY 2-1-1 PROGRAM 
 
3.4 PRESENTATION OF PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENT VIDEO  

 



 

3 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC021114.Docx 
2/6/2014 4:45 PM 

6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS 
 

6.1 CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE TO REPEAL THE CURRENT TAKE-OUT 
SERVICE WARE AT RETAIL FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS ORDINANCE OF THE 
WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE IN ITS ENTIRETY & ADD A NEW CHAPTER 
ENTITLED ENVIRONMENTALLY ACCEPTABLE PACKAGING & PRODUCTS TO 
THE WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO EXPAND THE PROHIBITION TO 
INCLUDE, ALL TYPES OF PLASTIC FOAM AND IN ADDITION TO FOOD 
SERVICE WARE, RETAIL SALE OF CUPS, PLATES, BOWLS, AS WELL AS 
COOLERS, POOL OR BEACH TOYS, PACKING PEANUTS OR OTHER 
PACKAGING MATERIALS, EXCEPT AS EXEMPTED (Requested by Council 
Member Dodge)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Hearing 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Ordinance Introduction Repealing Chapter 6 (Requiring the Use of 

Recyclable, Biodegradable or Compostable Take-Out Service Ware at Retail 
Food Establishments) of Title 6 (Sanitation & Health) of the Watsonville 
Municipal Code in its Entirety & Adding a New Chapter 6 (Environmentally 
Acceptable Packaging and Products) of Title 6 (Sanitation and Health) of the 
Watsonville Municipal Code to Expand the Prohibition to Include, all Types of 
Plastic Foam & in Addition to Food Service ware, the Retail Sale of Cups, 
Plates, Bowls, as Well as Coolers, Pool or Beach Toys, Packing Peanuts or 
Other Packaging Materials, Except as Exempted 

 
6.2 CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE SECTION 6-7.101(e) OF WATSONVILLE 

MUNICIPAL CODE CHANGING THICKNESS REQUIREMENT OF PLASTIC 
REUSABLE BAGS FROM 2.25 MILS TO 4 MILS & CONTAINING A MINIMUM OF 
25% POST CONSUMER RECYCLED MATERIAL (Recommended by Public Works 
& Utilities Director Palmisano)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Hearing 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Ordinance Introduction Amending Subsection (e) of Section 6-7.101 

(Definitions) of Chapter 7 (Reducing Single-Use Plastic Carryout Bags) of 
Title 6 (Sanitation & Health) of the Watsonville Municipal Code Changing the 
Thickness of Requirement of Plastic Reusable Bags from 2.25 Mils to 4 Mils 
& Containing a Minimum of 25% Post Consumer Recycled Material 

 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS (Continued) 
 

8.3 DISTRICT APPOINTMENT & ELECTION OF MAYOR PETITION INITIATIVES 
(Recommended by City Clerk Flores & City Attorney Smith) 
(a) City Clerk Staff Report 
(b) City Attorney Staff Report 
(c) City Council Questions 
(d) Public Input 
(e) City Council Discussion  
(f) Motion Accepting Report Certifying Results of the Examination & Directing 

City Attorney to Return with Resolution Calling the Election for June 3, 2014 



 

4 
P:\Agendas\2014\CC021114.Docx 
2/6/2014 4:45 PM 

 
10.1 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA  
 
10.2 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  

(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 

 
11.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 54954.2(a)(1) of the Government Code of the State of California, this agenda was posted at least 72 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting at a public place freely accessible to the public 24 hours a day and on the City of Watsonville 
website at www.cityofwatsonville.org. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office (275 Main Street, 4

th
 Floor) during normal business hours. Such documents are also 

available on the City of Watsonville website at www.cityofwatsonville.org subject to staff’s ability to post the document before 
the meeting. 

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/
http://www.cityofwatsonville.org/




Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

113 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
January 28, 2014  City of Watsonville 

         Council Chambers 
         275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

 
CONTENTS 

 
5:35 P.M. Session 

10.0 Closed Session 
6:34 P.M. City Council Meeting 

1.0 Roll Call 
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
3.1  Oral Communications 
3.2  Report out of Closed Session 
3.3 Proclamation World Wetlands Day 
3.4 Holiday Competition Awards  
4.1 Motion Approve Minutes 
4.2 Reso 9-14 Fiber Optic Proj Phase 2 
4.3 Reso 10-14 Appt. Yolanda Danna to 

Library Board  
4.4 Ord 1299-14 Stormwater Post-

Construction Requirements 

8.1 Naming of Public Places 
Petition/Calling Election on June 4, 
2014 

8.2 Public Safety Tax Measure  
--Reso 11-14 TBWB Contract 

8.3 Voluntary 20% Water Use 
Reduction Effort 

 -- Reso 12-14 Voluntary 20% 
Reduction 

9.1 HWY 1/ Harkins Slough Project  
10.1 Emergency Items Added 
10.2 Information Items 

(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents 

11.0 Adjournment at 10:23 P.M.
 

5:35 P.M. 
 

10.0 CLOSED SESSION 
 

(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda were only accepted by the City 

Council at that time. 
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council recessed the regular Council Meeting to discuss those items listed on 

the Closed Session Statement attached to the Agenda.  

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9)  

1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 
 

a) Name of case:     Ethnobotanica v. City of Watsonville — Santa Cruz County  
  Superior Court (Case No. CV173820) 
 
 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

114 

(Government Code Section 54956.9)  
1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 

 
a) Name of case:   City of Watsonville and Successor Agency to the  

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville v. 
California Department of Finance et al. — Sacramento 
County Superior Court (Case No. 34-2013-80001523) 

 
6:34 P.M. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

Mayor Cervantez, Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez, and Council Members Bilicich, 
Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hurst, and Montesino were present.  
 
Staff members present were City Manager Palacios, City Attorney Smith, City Clerk 
Vázquez Flores, Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano, Police Chief Solano, Fire 
Chief Bisbee, Administrative Services Director Vega, Parks & Community Services 
Director Espinoza, Library Director Heitzig, Assistant Public Works Utilities Director 
Rodriguez, Human Resources Manager Manning, Division Fire Chief Barretto, Assistant 
Parks & Community Services Director Blachly, Principal Planner Boyle, Police Lt. 
Zamora, Police Lt. Traub, Police Lt. Gonzalez, Sr. Administrative Analyst Maldonado, 
Deputy City Clerk Ortiz, and Interpreter Landaverry. 

 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 

Rhea DeHart, District 7, expressed her joy at knowing that the Let the People Vote 
Campaign successfully gathered enough signatures to qualify for the June Election 
Primary. She thanked the proponents for their dedication and work. 
 
Linda Haines, Real Estate Broker, spoke about the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) meeting regarding Flood Insurance cost increase. She spoke about the 
negative effects insurance increase costs had on property owners and their properties. 
She asked Council to create a petition to repeal the Flood Insurance Reform Act of 
2012. 
 
Rhea DeHart, District 7, spoke about the FEMA meeting and stated flood insurance 
costs would adversely affect seniors living within the flood zone. She spoke about her 
attendance at the Zone 7 Flood Control and Water Conservation District meeting and 
commended Member Bilicich and Supervisor Caput for their continued service on the 
board. She invited the public to future Zone 7 meetings that would be held in 
Watsonville.  
 
Dan Hernandez, Let the People Vote Campaign representative, commended the Let the 
People Vote Campaign members for successfully acquiring enough signatures to place 
their three (3) petitions on a ballot. He stated his disagreement with the way Council 
vacancies were filled. 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

115 

Gary Richard Arnold spoke about several Federal Government decisions he disagreed 
with. He handed Council a magazine titled “The New America, the New Age of 
Surveillance” and encouraged the Council to protect the City from government threats.   
 
Rick Danna stated the petition to change the way Council vacancies were filled met the 
necessary signatures to be placed on the June Election Primary. He thanked Council 
Member Bilicich, Supervisor Caput, and everyone who participated for their support. He 
stated the Council could not solve the City’s many problems on their own and it would be 
up to the community to work to resolve them. He asked Council to join their cause and 
place all three of the Let the People Vote Campaign petitions on the June Election 
Primary. 
 
Christopher Lang stated he had observed teens sitting on the window openings at the 
Civic Plaza Parking Garage and asked Council to implement safety measures to prevent 
the teens from falling. He asked Council to install more public restrooms as there were 
people urinating in the parking garages and creating an unsanitary environment for 
others. He also asked Council to work with him to end violence and substance abuse.   
 
Member Bilicich spoke about the FEMA meeting she attended regarding flood insurance 
cost increase. She proposed City staff write a letter to several State officials in 
opposition to the increase in flood insurance costs. She commended awardees at the 
Pájaro Valley Chamber of Commerce Dinner and commended the Let the People Vote 
Campaign Members for being successful in gathering enough signatures to place their 
petitions in ballot. 
 
Member Dodge wished Officer Skip Pigge well on his forced retirement due to ALS. He 
thanked Ms. Haines for addressing the Council and stated he was committed to 
supporting residents being affected by the insurance cost increase. He gave an update 
on the Watsonville Metro Center. He asked staff to address lighting issues in elevators 
located on the Civic Plaza Parking garage. 
 
Member Montesino gave Mayor Cervantez a piece of concrete from the La Fonda Bridge 
project in honor of its completion. He welcomed the Youth Council Members present at 
the meeting. 
 
Member Hurst invited the public to the Fort Ord event dedicated to military chaplains.  
He spoke about the FEMA meeting held the previous day regarding flood insurance cost 
increase. He spoke about a conference he attended in Pacific Grove regarding eco-
farms. He thanked Mr. Danna for addressing the Council and spoke about the different 
issues affecting Watsonville residents. He spoke about the Let the People Vote 
Campaign receiving unknown funds for petition signature gatherers.  
 
Member Coffman-Gomez stated that the Council and the community needed to work as 
a group in order to stop flood insurance cost increase. She stated the Senate had 
postponed decisions to increase the rates dramatically and encouraged people to work 
to stop the increases through petitioning and sending letters to their local Congress 
representatives. She thanked several employees for their many years of service. She 
spoke about the efforts the City was making to eliminate homeless camps and relocating 
the homeless. She spoke about her efforts to reduce the unemployment in Watsonville.  
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

116 

Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez thanked local entrepreneurs and staff for working hard 
to establish new businesses and encouraged residents to shop in Watsonville. He spoke 
about his attendance at the Crab Feed event held in the Portuguese Community Hall 
and encouraged residents to attend future events. 
 
Mayor Cervantez commended Youth Mayor Felicia Davidson for her commitment to 
public service. She also recognized Juanita Alvarez and Dulce Sixtos for their work and 
congratulated them on their admission into the Ivy League Tour. She stated many 
jurisdictions and several water agencies met with the Council to work on a plan to 
conserve water.  
 

3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
City Attorney Smith reported that Council received reports on both items on the Closed 
Session Agenda, but took no action.  
 

3.3 MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION CONFIRMING FEBRUARY 2, 2014, WORLD 
WETLANDS DAY & COMMENDING WATSONVILLE WETLANDS WATCH FOR ITS 
ONGOING STEWARDSHIP OF THE PRECIOUS WETLANDS, A RICH ECOLOGICAL 
TREASURE IN THE HEART OF OUR COMMUNITY 

 
3.4 PRESENTATION OF 2013 HOLIDAY DECORATING COMPETITION AWARDS (Mayor 

Cervantez): 
 
Best Outdoor Tree 

 
Best Indoor Lighted Tree 

Ron Haedicke Annabelle Smith (1st Place) 
87 Meadow Terrace 
District 3 

1116 Sundale Court 
District 1 

 
Best Indoor Lighted Tree  
Jan Streig (2nd Place) 
24 Monte Vista 
District 6 
 

 
Best Mobile Home 1st Place  
Joel Jaime & Rocio Lopez 
501 S. Green Valley Road #1 
District 3 
 

Best House & Yard Contemporary 
Theme 1st Place 

Best House & Yard Contemporary Theme 
2nd Place 

Galdino Medina Mike Carranco 
70 Gardner 1050 Madison St. 
District 6 District 6 
 
Best House & Yard Contemporary 
Theme 3rd Place 

 
Best House & Yard Religious  

Ron & Lupe DeGroodt Miguel & Lidia Camargo 
743 Nevada St 310 Riverside Drive 
District 7 District 2 

 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item (None) 
 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Dodge, seconded by Member Bilicich and carried by 
the following vote that the Consent Agenda be approved:  



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

117 

 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, Hurst, 

Montesino, Cervantez 
NOES: MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 
 
Member Bilicich congratulated Yolanda Danna on her appointment to the Library Board. 
 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING COUNCIL MINUTES OF JANURAY 14, 2014 
 

4.2 RESOLUTION NO. 9-14 (CM): 
 RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS & CALLING FOR BIDS 

FOR CITYWIDE FIBER OPTIC PHASE 2, PROJECT NO. ST-14-02 (ESTIMATED 
COST OF $180,000: 38% ($68,400) WILL BE PAID FROM WATER ENTERPRISE 
FUND, 38% ($68,400) FROM LIBRARY ENTERPRISE FUND, 16% ($28,800) FROM 
GENERAL FUND FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT PORTION, 4% ($7,200) FROM 
GENERAL FUND FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT PORTION, AND 4% ($7,200) FROM 
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND)  

 
4.3 RESOLUTION NO. 10-14 (CM): 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING YOLANDA DANNA TO THE LIBRARY BOARD [District 
7]  

 
4.4 ORDINANCE NO 1299-14 (CM): 

FINAL ORDINANCE ADOPTION AMENDING ARTICLE 5 (SEWER SERVICES) OF 
CHAPTER 3 (CITY UTILITIES) OF TITLE 6 (SANITATION & HEALTH) OF THE 
WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO INCORPORATE STORMWATER POST-
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS INTO THE CITY’S PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
STANDARDS 
 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA—None  
 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 
8.1 NAMING OF PUBLIC PLACES OR PROPERTY INITIATIVE PETITION 

 
(a) Staff Report 

The report was given by City Clerk Vázquez Flores. 
 

(b) City Council Questions 
City Clerk Vázquez Flores, in answering Member Dodge, stated the Council 
needed to make a decision on whether they would like to place the initiative 
petition on a ballot or simply adopt an ordinance with the language on the 
petition. She clarified that the Council could do either, but would have to make a 
decision within ten days from that meeting certifying the results.   
 
City Clerk Vázquez Flores answered questions from Member Coffman-Gomez 
and Mayor Cervantez regarding what types of things they could request to be 
included in a report if they chose to receive additional information before making 
a decision on the petition initiative.  
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

118 

City Clerk Vázquez Flores, in answering Mayor Cervantez, stated that costs for 
placing an item on a ballot varied from $20,000 to $80,000, depending on when 
item is placed. She explained the differences between the current process and 
the proposed process.  
 
In answering Member Dodge, City Clerk Vazquez Flores stated that the last time 
a public place was named was in the 1990s.  
 
City Attorney Smith answered questions from Members Dodge and Hurst 
regarding the process used to name the Gene Hoularis Waldo Rodriguez Youth 
Center. He stated that Franich Park was named as part of an agreement with the 
property owner at the time. 
 
City Clerk Vázquez Flores answered questions from Member Bilicich regarding 
costs associated with elections. She explained that the costs could reach 
$80,000 depending on when the election was held. 
 
In answering Member Montesino, City Clerk Vázquez Flores stated Council 
needed to reach a decision by February 25, 2014, if they planned to place the 
initiative in the June Election. 
 
City Clerk Vázquez Flores explained for Member Hurst what types of properties 
would be subject to the initiative.  
 

(c) Public Input 
Gerry Martin read the letter included in Council’s packet regarding the Naming of 
Places or Property Initiative. She requested the initiative be placed in the June 
Election. 
 
Carlos Rico read the letter included in Council’s packet in Spanish and asked 
Council to place the initiative in the June Ballot.  
 
Gerry Martin spoke about the determination and hard work Carlos Rico and 
Aurora Parker did in order to gather enough signatures to place the petitions in 
the June Election.  
 
Carlos Rico stated he did not get paid to collect signatures. 
 
Kathy Perez, District 6, spoke about the intentions of the Let the People Vote 
Campaign and the work the members did. She asked the Council place the 
initiative in the June Election and encouraged Council to approve the ordinance 
in place of having it on a ballot. 
 
Dan Hernandez stated he tried to rename a public park from Veteran’s Park to 
Victor Gonzalez Park and was unable to, due to the lack of interest and unfair 
process that was used to name public places. He asked Council to implement the 
new proposed process for naming public places and do what was best for the 
community. 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

119 

Alex Solano stated Member Hurst’s comments regarding lack of transparency in 
the Let the People Vote Campaign were unfair. He spoke about disagreements 
he had with Member Hurst in the past.  
 
Pedro Castillo, District 4, commended City Clerk Vázquez Flores for her report. 
He spoke about the fairness of the existing process for naming public places and 
listed several reasons the proposed process was misleading. He stated the Let 
the People Vote Campaign needed to be more transparent and report where they 
were receiving their funding.   
 
Yolanda Danna invited the Council to work together with the Let the People Vote 
Campaigners to do what the community desired. She asked the Council to 
support the initiative and place it in the June ballot. 
 
Dr. Lupe Rivas, PVUSD, stated that many Watsonville residents did not have the 
ability or opportunity to vote and the outcome of the election did not necessarily 
reflect the decision of the majority of Watsonville.  
 
Aurora Parker, PVUSD Teacher, stated the democratic process was important 
and the petition was widely accepted. She asked Council to place the initiative on 
a ballot and to allow people to vote. 
 
Robert Chacanaca stated the existing process for naming public places was 
democratic and fair. He added that the proposed process opened doors to 
investors who would invest money in naming buildings.    
 

(d) City Council Discussion 
Member Hurst spoke about the lack of transparency in the Let the People Vote 
Campaign. He added that the proposed naming process would encourage paid 
political consultants to attempt to rename places in order to make a profit.  
 
Mayor Cervantez spoke about the inability of many Watsonville residents to vote 
and stated the proposed process would limit the input of those residents. She 
added that the proposed process would cost the City money each time the City 
had to place items on a ballot. She clarified that the proposed process would give 
Council Members the ability to choose names and place them on a ballot. She 
commended the residents for circulating a petition and encouraged residents to 
participate in local government. 
 
Member Dodge spoke in support of residents being able to circulate petitions. He 
spoke about the existing process for naming public places and stated his 
concerns with the proposed process. He questioned the petitioners on how they 
received funding to pay signature gatherers and the motives behind the 
circulated petitions. 
  
Member Bilicich stated residents worked hard to acquire enough signatures to 
place the petition on the ballot and would like for it to be validated and placed on 
the ballot.  
 
Member Coffman-Gomez stated the voters would make the decision on whether 
or not to change the way public places are named. 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

120 

 
Member Hurst stated the petition did not address the real problems affecting the 
City, but he would support the motion in order to provide for a democratic 
process.  
 

(e) Appropriate Motion 
 
MOTION: It was moved by Mayor Cervantez, seconded by Member Bilicich 
and carried by the following vote to accept the City Clerk Certificate of Sufficiency 
of the Initiative Petition for Naming Public Places or Property and to submit the 
ordinance, without alterations to the voters on June 3, 2014 (State Primary 
Election): 
 

AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, 

  Hurst, Montesino, Cervantez 
NOES: MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 

 
8.2 RESULTS OF VOTER SURVEY ON POSSIBLE PUBLIC SAFETY REVENUE 

MEASURE & APPROVAL OF CONSULTANT CONTRACT WITH TBWB FOR PHASE 
II OF DEVELOPMENT OF REVENUE MEASURE 
 
(a) Oral Report on Survey Results by Godbe & TBWB  

The report was given by Jared Boigon, TBWB Strategies, and Bryan Godbe, 
Godbe Research.  
 
Revenue Measure Oversight Committee Chair Vargas gave a report on the 
findings of the committee.  
 

(b) Staff Report 
The report was given by Administrative Services Director Vega. 
 

(c) City Council Questions 
City Manager Palacios stated that any revenue generated from the proposed tax 
measure would be distributed between the Police and Fire Departments. He 
stated Police would receive 60% and Fire would receive 40% because of the size 
of the departments. He added that Police had a draft expenditure plan that would 
allow the use of such funds to help their gang prevention efforts.  
 
City Manager Palacios, in answering Member Dodge, stated that both Police and 
Fire Departments created draft expenditure plans and presented them to the 
Revenue Measure Oversight Committee to show how the departments planned 
on spending any money generated from the proposed sales tax measure. He 
added that the Departments would present that information to Council on the 
February 25, 2014, meeting. 
 
Jared Boigon, in answering Member Montesino, stated that the sunset clause 
was suggested in order to allow for residents to see how the City was doing in 
using new funds and would have the option to extend the tax measure in a future 
ballot if the community was happy with the improved services. He added that it 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

121 

was a common practice to develop a good track record with the community by 
using sunset clauses. 
 
Fire Chief Bisbee, in answering Member Montesino, stated that the Fire 
Department planned to use new funding to hire additional firefighters and reduce 
overtime costs. He added that a satellite Fire Department office was not planned 
as he did not anticipate enough funding for it.  
 
Bryan Godbe and Jared Boigon answered questions from Member Bilicich 
regarding data collection for survey and the accuracy behind it. Administrative 
Services Director Vega stated that the City would be spending approximately 
$50,000 in collecting data and preparing for a possible sales tax measure. Bryan 
Godbe stated that residents would support a special sales tax despite increasing 
the tax rate to one of the highest tax rates in the County. 
 
Member Bilicich asked that the east side of Watsonville receive more attention by 
the Fire Department and consider a satellite office. 
 
Jared Boigon, in answering Member Hurst, stated that the measure being 
considered by the Revenue Measure Oversight Committee was a special tax 
measure that could only be used for Police and Fire Departments.  
 
Bryan Godbe answered questions from Member Dodge regarding the track 
history of his company and the confidence they have in their surveys. 
 
In answering Mayor Cervantez, City Manager Palacios, stated that Council would 
receive a final report, language for the ballot, and expenditure plans at the 
February 25, 2014, meeting. He added that Council would have to make a final 
decision that date if they planned on placing the tax measure on the June Ballot. 
Revenue Measure Oversight Committee Member Vargas stated the committee 
would meet once more before the final decision took place. 
 
Jared Boigon, in answering Member Coffman-Gomez, stated that after the 
sunset clause, the residents could vote to extend the tax increase, but the 
extension would also need a 2/3 majority vote. Administrative Services Director 
Vega, in answering Member Coffman-Gomez, stated a half-cent tax increase 
would generate $2.8 million in revenue annually. Administrative Services Director 
Vega answered questions regarding CalPers and the financial mid-year report. 
Oversight Committee Chair Vargas, in answering Member Coffman-Gomez, 
stated that a person purchasing a vehicle is subject to the tax rate where they 
reside, so they did not anticipate a tax increase in Watsonville making a big 
impact on Watsonville auto dealers. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega, in answering Member Bilicich, stated the 
costs for preparing the measure were paid for through the general fund. 
 

(d) Public Input 
Rhea DeHart, Pájaro Valley Senior Coalition, encouraged Council to place the 
tax measure on the June Ballot. She suggested a five-year sunset clause as 
opposed to the recommended seven-year clause. She also suggested that the 
Oversight Committee be reformed to include a wider range of stakeholders.  



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

122 

 
Rebecca Garcia asked Council to ask staff what was the plan for the campaign, 
what materials would be used for informing residents, who would be hired to 
recruit, where the measure would be advertised and total cost for the campaign. 
 

(e) City Council Discussion  
Administrative Services Director Vega, in answering Member Coffman-Gomez, 
stated that the agreement with TBWB had an error on the dates and was 
corrected. He added that the agreement would be effective that date if Council 
approved and would run through the end of March.  
 
City Manager Palacios, in answering Member Bilicich, stated public funds could 
not be used to for campaigning. He added that private parties must campaign as 
the City is not allowed.  
 
Member Montesino stated support for the tax measure and said he did not 
believe a higher tax rate would discourage shopping in Watsonville.  
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez spoke in support of the motion and searching for 
new grant funding for public safety. 
 
Member Dodge spoke in support of the tax measure and growth of Watsonville. 
He stated the City was actively looking to address many issues and working to 
better support City staff.  
 
Member Hurst encouraged residents to help their community by campaigning for 
the tax measure. He thanked the Revenue Measure Oversight Committee for 
their work. 
 
Member Bilicich asked Fire Chief Bisbee to explore adding a third Fire Station in 
the east side of Watsonville. 
 
Mayor Cervantez thanked the Revenue Measure Oversight Committee for their 
work and stated her support for the tax measure.   
 

(f) APPROPRIATE MOTION DIRECTING STAFF TO RETURN WITH A 
RESOLUTION TO COUNCIL ON FEBRUARY 25, 2014, CALLING AN 
ELECTION FOR A SPECIAL PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX MEASURE  

 
(g) RESOLUTION NO. 11-14 (CM): 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONTRACT WITH TBWB FOR PHASE II OF 
DEVELOPMENT OF REVENUE MEASURE 
 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Dodge, seconded by Member Montesino 
and carried by the following vote that staff be directed to return with a resolution 
calling for an election for a special public safety sales tax measure and that the 
above resolution (g) be approved: 
 

AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, 

  Hurst, Montesino, Cervantez 
NOES: MEMBERS: None 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

123 

ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 

 
8.3 CITY'S RESPONSE TO CURRENT DROUGHT CONDITIONS 

 
(a) Oral Staff Report 

The report was given by Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano. 
 

(b) City Council Questions 
Member Bilicich commended residents and the Public Works Department for the 
efforts in conserving water. Member Bilicich stated that residents needed to be 
commended as they have done a great job conserving water in comparison to 
the rest of the state. Public Works and Utilities Director Palmisano stated that the 
Pájaro Valley Water Management Association (PVWMA) passed a similar 
resolution asking farmers to reduce water use by 20%.   
 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano, in answering Member Dodge, stated 
that PVWMA passed their water conservation resolution the previous week. 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano answered questions from Member 
Dodge regarding options for water conservation.  
 
Member Hurst commended the residents for doing a great job conserving water. 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano, in answering Member Hurst, stated 
the City was promoting water conservation through landscape audits and 
educating residents about water conservation. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Hernandez recommended the City create Public Service 
Announcements to educate the residents about water conservation. 
 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano, in answering Member Bilicich, stated 
the resolution would encourage residents to conserve water but would not 
penalize them for not participating.  
 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano answered questions from Member 
Coffman-Gomez regarding car washes, import of water through bottled water, 
and inflow of water into the water recycling facility. 
 
Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano explained for Mayor Cervantez what 
types of things were covered in Landscape Audits.  
 

(c) Public Input (None) 
 

(d) City Council Discussion 
Member Dodge spoke about the efforts the City was making to support water 
conservation. 
 
Member Hurst stated that properly maintaining parks is more important than 
naming them. 
 
Member Bilicich clarified for the public that the resolution was asking residents to 
voluntarily reduce water use.  



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

124 

 
Mayor Cervantez spoke about the Climate Action Plan Committee and their 
efforts to conserve water and reduce emissions.  
 

(e) RESOLUTION NO. 12-14 (CM): 
RESOLUTION REQUESTING THAT ALL CUSTOMERS PARTICIPATE IN A 
VOLUNTARY EFFORT TO REDUCE WATER USE BY 20% TO SUPPORT 
GOVERNOR BROWN'S DECLARATION OF A DROUGHT EMERGENCY 
 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Coffman-Gomez, seconded by Member 
Dodge and carried by the following vote that the above resolution (e) be 
approved: 
 

AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, 

  Hurst, Montesino, Cervantez 
NOES: MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 

 
9.0 REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS 

 
9.1 STATUS UPDATE ON HIGHWAY 1/HARKINS SLOUGH PROJECT 

 
(a) Oral Staff Report 

The report was given by Assistant Public Works & Utilities Director Rodriguez. 
 

(b) City Council Questions 
Member Dodge spoke about the unprecedented restrictions placed on 
Watsonville by several entities when attempting to build Pájaro Valley High 
School. Assistant Public Works & Utilities Director Rodriguez answered 
questions from Member Dodge regarding challenges in modifying bridges, ramp 
operations, and challenges in relieving congestion. 
 
Member Montesino thanked Assistant Public Works & Utilities Director Rodriguez 
for her presentation. Assistant Public Works & Utilities Director Rodriguez 
answered questions from Member Montesino regarding costs associated with 
improvements to the Highway 1/Harkins Slough Project. Principal Planner Boyle 
stated that the project would require Coastal Commission approval. 
 
Assistant Public Works & Utilities Director Rodriguez answered questions from 
Member Hurst regarding possibility of improving the bridge, Caltrans 
involvement, pedestrian access, and the traffic count.  
 

(c) Public Input 
Lupe Rivas, District 7, spoke about a planned stadium near Pájaro Valley High 
School and spoke about the congestion. She stated she would like to see a wider 
bridge to ease congestion and would like for more communication between the 
City and other agencies to address those problems. 
 

10.1 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA  
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

125 

10.2 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  
(a) Report of Disbursements 
(b) Miscellaneous Documents  
 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 10:23 P.M. 

 
___________________________________ 

 Karina Cervantez, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________  

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 
 
  



 

Vol 61 Min-CC012814.docx  

126 

This page was left blank intentionally. 



EV 02/03/2014 3:33 PM Page 1 of 2
\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\fiber optic project\SR Fiber Optic V2.docx 

City of Watsonville 

Finance Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 3, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 

Steve Palmisano, Public Works Director 

Mark Lamoureaux, Information Technology Manager 

Robert Berry, Project Manager  

SUBJECT: Authorize the City Manager to Sign Memorandum of Understanding 

between the City of Watsonville and the Santa Cruz Metropolitan 

Transit District for Partnership in the Construction of Fiber Optic 

Lines to the Watsonville Transit Center 

AGENDA ITEM: February 11, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council of the City of Watsonville approves a resolution 
authorizing the City Manager to sign a Memorandum of Understanding with the Santa Cruz 
Metropolitan Transit District for Partnership in the Construction of a Fiber Optic connection 
from the Civic Plaza to the Watsonville Transit Center. 

DISCUSSION:   
The City currently receives fiber optic data services at no cost as part of the original franchise 
agreement with Charter Communications. However, on June 30, 2014 this franchise agreement 
will expire and the service will no longer be free. 

City staff identified two options to address the loss of this free fiber optic service. 
1. Building its own fiber optic system, or
2. Continuing utilization of the Charter fiber optic system through a lease agreement.

Staff recommended investing in a citywide fiber optic system as the most cost-effective solution 
and the City Council of the City of Watsonville approved the construction of Citywide Fiber 
Optic project during its meeting of September 10, 2013 (136-13 CM).  The approved project 
would serve all City facilities as an alternative to the expiring contract with Charter 
Communications.  It is anticipated this new fiber optic system will provide data and essential 
communication services to all City facilities.  Some of the more critical systems supported by 
this infrastructure include internet access, data connection, security systems, wireless access to 
City systems by police officers, and gate controls for all City facilities. 

The original approved project included connectivity to the following locations: 
 Watsonville High School

CITY COUNCIL  4.2

ezequiel.vega
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



EV 02/03/2014 3:33 PM Page 2 of 2 
\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\fiber optic project\SR Fiber Optic V2.docx 

 Veterans Building 
 Fowle Reservoir 
 Freedom Library 
 Fire Station 2 
 Watsonville Airport 

 
Since the City Council’s approval, city staff has issued an RFP, received responses to the same, 
and awarded the contract for construction of all phases of the project.  
 
This project was received with interest by some organizations within the City as a potential for 
leasing the lines or joining in the construction of fiber lines for their own use. One of these 
organizations, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (SCMTD), approved staff to 
negotiate and sign an agreement with the City to include the construction of fiber optic lines 
from the City’s Civic Plaza to the Watsonville Transit Center. City Staff believes entering into 
such an agreement is beneficial for both parties and is presenting the agreement for Council’s 

approval. Approving this agreement does not create a financial impact on the City as the cost of 
the additional work would be reimbursed to the City by SCMTD. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

The recommendation supports the principles used to develop the 2013-14 Strategic Plan by 
focusing in the most effective utilization of resources and protecting public safety.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The estimates for the project remain unchanged from the original estimate. The estimated cost of 
Phase 1 remains at $300,000, and the estimated cost of Phase 2 remains at $180,000, for a total 
project cost of $480,000. The project appropriations in the amount of $480,000 have already 
been approved by the City Council to be funded by the by the Water, Library, Airport, and 
General Funds in a proportionate share of the project costs based on benefit and use as follows: 
Water 38%, Library 38%, General Fund Police 16%, General Fund Fire 4%, and Airport 4%. 
The cost for the additional work recommended as part of this agreement would be funded by the 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The City Council can deny the authority to enter into a contract and direct staff to seek 
alternatives. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None 
 
cc: City Attorney 



Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\MOU with METRO Fiber Optic Lines.docx 
ri 2/6/2014 1:16:03 PM  AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance______

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
AND THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE FOR PARTNERSHIP IN THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF FIBER OPTIC LINES FROM THE WATSONVILLE 
CIVIC PLAZA TO THE WATSONVILLE TRANSIT CENTER LOCATED 
AT 475 RODRIGUEZ STREET, AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Memorandum of Understanding between the Santa Cruz

Metropolitan Transit District and the City of Watsonville for partnership in the 

construction of fiber optic lines from the Watsonville Civic Plaza to the Watsonville 

Transit Center located at 475 Rodriguez Street, which Memorandum of Understanding is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair and equitable and is 

hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

such Memorandum of Understanding for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

*************************************** 

CITY COUNCIL 4.2

carlos.palacios
Approved



 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

 SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT  

 AND THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE REGARDING  

 THE FIBER OPTIC PROJECT 

Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\MOU with Metro Fiber Optic Project 2 6 14.docx 1  

 

 

This Memorandum Of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as “MOU,” is entered into 

on this _12th___ day of February, 2014, by the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District, 

hereinafter referred to as “Santa Cruz METRO,” and the City of Watsonville, hereinafter 

referred to as “CITY,” as follows: 

 

I. RECITALS 

 

1.01 Santa Cruz METRO is a public transit district formed under the Public 

Utilities Code, whose administrative offices are located at: 110 Vernon 

Street, Santa Cruz, California, 95060.  

  

1.02 CITY is a municipal corporation whose administrative offices are located 

at 275 Main Street, Suite 400 (4
th

 Floor), Watsonville, CA 95076. 

  

1.03 Santa Cruz METRO desires to improve its telecommunications 

infrastructure at its Watsonville Transit Center, and it is necessary to 

upgrade the infrastructure to allow for improved telecommunications 

capacity. Upgraded telecommunications capacity will allow expansion of 

security related solutions at Santa Cruz Metro’s Watsonville Transit 

Center, including connectivity with the CITY’s Police Department.  

 

This MOU is not binding or legally enforceable, imposes no enforceable 

obligations upon the Parties and does not grant any rights. However, the 

Parties may utilize this MOU as the framework for an agreement or 

agreements, which will be collectively referred to herein as the 

“Agreement.”  

 

II. UNDERSTANDING 

 

2.01 Santa Cruz METRO has received funds from the California Emergency  

Management Agency, Office of Homeland Security, for capital transit 

projects related to transit security.  

 

2.02  CITY is investing in a city-wide fiber optic system which will involve the  

excavation, construction and installation of fiber optic conduits throughout 

the City of Watsonville.   

 

2.03  Santa Cruz METRO intends to invest some of such funds from  the  

California Emergency Management Agency to connect Santa Cruz 

METRO’s Watsonville Transit Center to CITY’s city-wide fiber optic 

system in order to enhance security there. 

 

2.04  CITY intends to add a fiber optic connection from City’s Watsonville  



Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\MOU with Metro Fiber Optic Project 2 6 14.docx   
2 

Civic Center to the Santa Cruz METRO’s Watsonville Transit Center. 

Said extension will be hereinafter referred to as “Project.”   

 

 

2.05  The Project will consist of installing a 2” conduit, including dark fiber  

installation, from the existing vault at CITY’s FS #1 on Rodriguez Street, 

under Rodriguez Street, to the Watsonville Transit Center. At this time it 

is appropriate to enter into this MOU in order to plan the necessary tasks 

for the Project. 

 

2.06  Santa Cruz METRO and CITY desire to work cooperatively during the  

Project so that the Santa Cruz METRO’s local, regional and rapid public 

transportation services are maintained and expanded and to ensure that the 

CITY’s interests in a cohesive and revitalized downtown area are met. The 

conduit and fiber will remain the property of the City and there will be no 

charge to either party for the use of the fiber being installed for use at the 

Watsonville Transit Center. 

 

2.07  CITY shall provide Santa Cruz METRO with detailed costs related to this  

Project. Santa Cruz METRO shall reimburse CITY for expenditures 

related to this Project only, up to a cap of $80,000. 

III. TERM 

 

3.01 This MOU shall commence on February _12th__, 2014 and shall continue 

for a period of three (3) years through February _11th__, 2017.   This 

MOU shall expire on February _12th__, 2017 unless sooner terminated by 

either party in accordance with the provisions herein. 

 

3.02 This MOU may be extended in writing of the parties should the date for 

completion of the Project extend beyond the term of this MOU. 

 

3.03 This MOU may be terminated upon a 60-day written notice by either party 

to the other for any reason.  If adequate grant funding cannot be procured 

for the Project, METRO may terminate this MOU by giving City a 10-day 

written notice. 

 

3.04 In the event this MOU is terminated prior to the completion of the Project, 

Santa Cruz METRO shall reimburse CITY for all costs incurred up to the 

date of termination.  

 

IV. COMPENSATION 

 

4.01 City shall bill Santa Cruz METRO on a monthly basis for costs incurred 

directly related to the Project. In the event the cumulative costs of the 

Project exceed $80,000; CITY shall notify Santa Cruz METRO and Santa 

Cruz METRO may elect to proceed with Project under an amendment to 



Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\MOU with Metro Fiber Optic Project 2 6 14.docx   
3 

this MOU or Santa Cruz METRO may terminate this MOU. In no event 

shall CITY bind Santa Cruz METRO to amounts in excess of $80,000. 

 

V. NOTICES 

 

5.01 All notices under this MOU shall be deemed duly given upon delivery, if 

delivered by hand; or three (3) days after posting, if sent by registered 

mail, receipt requested; to a party hereto at the address hereunder set forth 

or to such other address as a party may designate by notice pursuant 

hereto. 

 

Santa Cruz METRO 

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 

110 Vernon Street 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Attention:  General Manager 

 

City Clerk 

City of Watsonville  

275 Main Street, Suite 400 (4
th

 Floor) 

Watsonville, CA 95076 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\MOU with Metro Fiber Optic Project 2 6 14.docx   
4 

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

        

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

By       By_____________________ 

    Leslie R. White     Leslyn K. Syren 

    General Manager     District Counsel 

 

Dated_________________________ 

 

 

 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

 

 

       Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

By       By_____________________ 

    Carlos Palacios     Alan. J. Smith 

    City Manager     City Attorney 

 

Dated_________________________ 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

By___________________________ 

     Beatriz V. Flores, City Clerk 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 3
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Highway 1-Harkin Slough\SR Hwy 1 Harkins Sl 021114 SP.doc  

City of Watsonville 

Public Works and Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: January 29, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works & Utilities 
Maria Esther Rodriguez, Assistant Director 

SUBJECT: Request to Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission regarding reprogramming of funds for the 
Highway 1/Harkins Slough Road Project 

AGENDA ITEM: February 11, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that City Council approve a letter to the Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Commission (SCCRTC) requesting the reprogramming of funds for the 
Highway 1/ Harkins Slough Road Project. 

DISCUSSION: 

 I. Background 
In the early 1990’s, the City was looking to improve accessibility and traffic operations in 
anticipation of development in the north west areas of Watsonville, as included in the approved 
General Plan.  City staff worked with Caltrans staff to produce studies required for the first step 
in developing a project to address these issues. 

A Project Study Report (PSR) was completed in March of 1998 and proposed to reconstruct 
and improve the current half diamond interchange at Highway 1/Harkins Slough Road in 
Watsonville.  The project consisted of replacing the existing 2 lane overcrossing with a four 
lane bridge that includes bicycle lanes and sidewalks and adding diamond ramps to the north. 

With this approved PSR, the City of Watsonville secured State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) funding for the project through the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission (SCCRTC) in the amount of $7.34 million. 

In 2001, Caltrans staff identified concerns with the traffic study conclusions in the PSR 
regarding the impact a full interchange would provide with respect to congestion relief.  At that 
time, the City was in the midst of major development of the City’s west side and working with 

4.3

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 2 of 3 

 
MECR  2/4/2014 9:48:44 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Highway 1-Harkin Slough\SR Hwy 1 Harkins Sl 021114 SP.doc 

 

the Pájaro Valley Unified School District on a project for a new high school.  During the 
approval process of the new high school, the Local Coastal Plan was updated to include 
specific language relating to the proposed Highway 1/Harkins Slough Interchange project.  A 
new bridge was constructed in the County portion of Harkins Slough Road which provided 
access to the new high school. 
 
 Additionally, over the course of the next few years, the economy shifted and traffic volumes 
patterns appeared to be greatly affected.  The City also completed construction of two bridges 
along the Harkins Slough Road corridor which provided all-weather access to the City’s west 
side and also altered traffic patterns in the area.  All of these factors added to the need to 
revisit the traffic study analysis and conclusions.  
 
II. Updated Traffic Study 
In 2011, a Traffic Impact Study scope was developed with Caltrans staff input.  The study was 
completed in January 2012.  A brief summary of the findings is included below:  
 
Full Interchange (i.e. portion of original project) 
- Full interchange would provide some benefit to traffic circulation in area by reducing delay 

at the intersection of Green Valley Road and Main Street and improving traffic flow along 
Main Street between Highway 1 and Rodriguez Street.  This would substantially change 
traffic flow and access in the interchange vicinity prompting various improvements 
associated with a full interchange including a widened and upgraded bridge, signalized 
intersections, and corridor improvements.   Additionally, modifications to the County bridge 
would also be required if the interchange were to be upgraded. 
 

- It is anticipated the costs associated with the full interchange project would be substantially 
greater that the $7.7 million currently programmed for construction, and it would take the 
City many years to secure the level of funding needed for these improvements.    

 
Project Alternative – Corridor and Intersection Improvements  
- Signalization of SR 1/Harkins Slough north bound off ramp:  This location was listed in 

previous PSR as meeting warrants for a signal; this was again the case in the updated 
study.  Additional analysis is required to ensure queue length would not be an issue on 
Highway 1.  

- Harkins Slough Road/Green Valley Road Corridor:  Operational improvements and/ or 
modifications to the intersections of Green Valley Rd/Main St (SR 152) and Green Valley 
Rd/Harkins Slough Rd would improve already existing deficient level of service E to an 
acceptable level.  Additionally, improvement of signal timing along the corridor through 
synchronization or a more dynamic signal timing upgrade could provide additional 
congestion relief along the corridor. 

 
Additional proposal to alternative 
-    Pedestrian/Bicycle Overcrossing:  It is obvious that pedestrians and cyclists along this 

corridor pose a very significant traffic concern.  The existing walkway on the overcrossing 
approach does not meet current standards and there are large volumes of pedestrians 
traveling over this road segment.  The width of the existing overcrossing does not allow for 



Page 3 of 3 

 
MECR  2/4/2014 9:48:44 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Highway 1-Harkin Slough\SR Hwy 1 Harkins Sl 021114 SP.doc 

 

necessary pedestrian and bicycle facilities.  Any modifications to the existing overcrossing 
would require that the structure be brought up to current minimum standards, which would 
be prohibitively expensive.  This would include minimum height clearance standards and 
thus require full reconstruction of the bridge.   

 
 Therefore, City staff proposes to include construction of a pedestrian/bicycle bridge over 

SR 1, parallel to the existing bridge that would increase safety, provide accessibility 
compliance and provide additional congestion relief for the existing overcrossing.   

 
III. Next steps  
City staff, in collaboration with Caltrans and RTC staff, has been in discussions regarding the 
traffic findings and the next steps for the project moving forward.  As the current project 
description includes the full interchange option, it would be necessary to reprogram the funding 
to reflect the preferred project alternatives described above.  
 
The RTC has programmed $7.34 million in STIP funds for right-of-way and construction of the 
Highway 1/Harkins Slough Road Interchange project.  In order to move forward with the 
preferred alternative for the project, staff recommends approval of a letter to the RTC to 
request that the STIP funds be reprogrammed.  It is anticipated that this item would then be 
presented to the SCCRTC board for action at their next meeting. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The strategic plan has, within its goals, the category of public works infrastructure.  The 
proposed project is consistent with this goal. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None at this time 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Council may choose to not send request or change language in attached letter. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Letter to Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
“Opportunity through diversity; unity through cooperation” 

 

250 Main Street    Watsonville    California    95076    (831) 768-3100 

 

 

February 12, 2014 

 

 

Mr. George Dondero, Executive Director 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 

1523 Pacific Avenue 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3911 

  

Subject:  Hwy 1/ Harkins Slough Road Interchange Project, WAT01/PPNO 413 

 Request for Project Modification and Reprogramming of Funds 

  

 

Dear Mr. Dondero, 

 

On February 11, 2014, the Watsonville City Council received an update on the subject project 

and moved to request modifications to the subject project and funding. 

 
The RTC has programmed $7.34 million for right-of-way and construction of the Highway 1/Harkins 

Slough Road Interchange project.  The City of Watsonville has committed to fund environmental, design 

and a portion of right-of-way and construction costs.  Based upon recent studies completed, preferred 

alternatives for addressing area traffic result in a modification of improvements in the project 

area.  For this reason, we request that the project be modified to include the following 

components and that the currently programmed STIP funds be reprogrammed to the modified 

project: 

 

Highway 1/ Harkins Slough Rd Improvements:  Construction Estimate: $8,600,000 

Project would include addressing existing overcrossing and off ramp safety as well as traffic 

congestion in the area.  Project components would include: installation of a signal at the 

northbound Highway 1 Off ramp at Harkins Slough Road; Signal modifications and operational 

improvements along Harkins Slough Road/Green Valley Road corridor, beginning at Highway 1 

Off ramp to Main Street (SR 125); Construction of Pedestrian/Bicycle Bridge over Highway 1.  

The proposed project estimate and schedule are included in Attachment A. 

 

If you have any questions or if additional information would be helpful, please contact Maria 

Esther Rodriguez, Assistant Public Works and Utilities Director, at (831) 768-3112. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

  

Steve Palmisano 

Director, Public Works and Utilities Department 

 

 

C:  Steve DiGrazia, Caltrans Attachment 1
Page 1 of 2



Attachment A 

 

 

Highway 1/ Harkins Slough Rd Improvements: 

 

Project components and estimates: 

 

$    500,000 Northbound SR 1 off ramp at Harkins Slough Road Signal Installation 

$    600,000 Green Valley Rd/ Harkins Slough Corridor Improvements  
  (Includes signal modifications and improvements from Hwy 1 Ramp to Main St (SR 152)) 

$ 7,500,000 Pedestrian/Bicycle Bridge over Highway 1 

$ 8,600,000 Total Proposed Project Construction Cost Estimate* 

 

 
*City of Watsonville has additional funding committed for environmental, design, and a portion of  

right-of-way and additional construction costs. 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Project Schedule 

 

 

 

 

  

 
Project Milestone 

Proposed Schedule 

Begin End 

Project Study Report (or equivalent document required)  03/30/14 11/30/14 

Environmental (PA&ED) Phase 11/30/14 06/30/16 

Design (PS&E) Phase 09/01/15 06/30/17 

Right of Way Phase 07/01/16 06/30/17 

Construction Phase 08/01/17 12/31/18 

Closeout Phase 01/01/19 06/30/19 

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 2



Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\Chromium 6.docx 
ri 2/6/2014 7:54:20 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ PWU ______

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE EXPRESSING CONCERN ABOUT THE SIGNIFICANT 
FINANCIAL IMPACT OF THE PROPOSED CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT 
OF PUBLIC HEALTH’S CHROMIUM-6 DRINKING WATER 
REGULATION WILL HAVE ON OUR COMMUNITY AND REQUESTING 
FINANCIAL SUPPORT FROM THE STATE TO COMPLY WITH THE 
REGULATION 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Public Health has proposed a drinking 

water maximum contaminant level of 10 parts per billion for chromium-6, thereby setting 

the first drinking water standard for chromium-6 in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, the understanding of the health effects of chromium-6 is still being 

evaluated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the knowledge continues to 

evolve; and 

WHEREAS, the Association of California Water Agencies recently completed an 

economic study of the costs of treatment systems needed to comply with the proposed 

Chromium 6 MCL, and demonstrated that the State of California underestimated the cost 

of compliance by over four times, leading to a State-wide compliance cost of over $4 

billion; and 

WHEREAS, over 90% of our water supply comes from groundwater wells, and 

these have always complied with the current total Chromium MCL, however the majority 

of our drinking water supply wells would not meet the proposed Chromium 6 MCL and 

would require treatment; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville estimates the cost compliance to be $25.6 

million for construction of the treatment systems, and an additional $1.7 million per year 

for operations and maintenance; and 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\Chromium 6.docx  
ri 2/6/2014 7:54:20 AM 

2 

WHEREAS, the City of Watsonville is recognized as an Economically 

Disadvantaged Community by the State of California, with a per capita income of less 

than half of the state average and a 17% unemployment rate; and   

WHEREAS, without State financial aid, the cost for compliance with the regulation 

would need to be generated through a 78% rate increase. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council of the City of Watsonville urges the State to provide 

grant funding to Economically Disadvantaged Communities for compliance with the 

Chromium 6 MCL.  

2. That the City Council urges the California Department of Health to 

reconsider the recent economic analysis completed by the Association of California 

Water Agencies, which demonstrated that the cost of compliance with the Chrome 6 

MCL was severely underestimated, and will result in State-wide compliance costs of over 

$4 billion. 

3. That the City Council urges the California Department of Health to ensure 

the effective date of new drinking water standards providing public water systems 

adequate time to install treatment facilities and avoid certain noncompliance.  

4. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to send a copy of this resolution to 

the California Department of Public Health-Office of Regulations, Assembly Member Luis 

Alejo, Senator Bill Monning, and Governor Brown of the State of California. 

 
****************************** 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 2 
MER  2/4/2014 9:45 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\FEMA\Staff Report FEMA.docx 

City of Watsonville 
 Public Work and Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 3, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works and Utilities 
Jackie McCloud, Environmental Projects Analyst  

SUBJECT: FEMA National Flood Insurance Program Update 

AGENDA ITEM: February 11, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:  
It is recommended that City Council 

a) receive an update on FEMA’s National Flood Insurance Program and Biggert-
Waters Act insurance rate increases, and

b) send letters to Senator Boxer, Senator Feinstein, and Congressman Farr
expressing concerns over proposed increases and supporting Senate Bill S-
1926, House Bill H. R. 3370 to delay increases while an affordability study is
completed.

DISCUSSION:  
In 1968, Congress created the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). The 
insurance program allows property owners to purchase flood insurance if there are 
adopted floodplain management ordinances and minimum standards for new 
construction.  Owners of existing homes and businesses did not have to rebuild to the 
higher standards, and many received subsidized rates that did not reflect their true risk. 

The Biggert-Waters Act (BWA), signed on July 6, 2012, reauthorizes the NFIP for five 
more years, extending it through September 30, 2017.  The law requires changes to 
major parts of the program, including flood insurance, flood hazard mapping, grants, 
and floodplain management.  The proposed changes are designed for two purposes:  
1) to ensure the long-term sustainability and financial soundness of the program, and
2) to respond to the rising costs and consequences of flooding.  These changes were
implemented in phases beginning January 1, 2013. 

In January 2014, the United States Senate passed legislation (S-1926-Homeowner’s 
Insurance Affordability Act 2013) to delay implementation of increases to flood 
insurance premiums for 4 years.  During this time FEMA will complete an affordability 
study and Congress can then respond to the recommendations.  The House will be 
required to introduce and vote on their version of the Bill (H. R. 3370).  After the vote, 

8.2a

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 2 of 2 

JM  2/4/2014 9:45 AM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\FEMA\Staff Report FEMA.docx 

 

the two bills would go to committee for discussion.  If a compromise can be reached, the 
combined bill would be voted on and, if passed, would move forward for the President’s 
signature. 
 
Staff recommends that the City of Watsonville send letters to Senator Boxer, Senator 
Feinstein, and Congressman Farr expressing concerns over the proposed rate 
increases and supporting Senate Bill S-1926, House Bill H. R. 3370 to delay increases 
while an affordability study is completed.   
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
This item is consistent with the Strategic Plan goals regarding infrastructure 
maintenance and risk reduction. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
There will be no financial impact to the City. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
City Council may choose to write to legislators to request a repeal of the Biggert-Waters 
Act. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
None.  
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 3
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Plastic Foam Products\Staff Report Plastic Foam Products (2-5-14 
Rev. 2).doc  (Revised 8/19/10) 

City of Watsonville 

Public Works & Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 5, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works & Utilities 
Nancy Lockwood, Environmental Projects Manager 

SUBJECT: Repeal Title 6 (Sanitation and Health) Chapter 6 (Requiring the 
Use of Recyclable, Biodegradable or Compostable Take-Out 
Service Ware at Retail Food Establishments) of the 
Watsonville Municipal Code in its entirety and adding a New 
Chapter 6 (Environmentally Acceptable Packaging and 
Products) of Title 6 (Sanitation and Health) of the Watsonville 
Municipal Code to Expand the Prohibition to Include, all Types 
of Plastic Foam and in Addition to Food Serviceware, the 
Retail Sale of Cups, Plates, Bowls, as Well as Coolers, Pool or 
Beach Toys, Packing Peanuts or Other Packaging Materials, 
Except as Exempted 

AGENDA ITEM: February 11, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council repeal Title 6 (Sanitation and Health) Chapter 6 

(Requiring the Use of Recyclable, Biodegradable or Compostable Take-Out Service Ware at 
Retail Food Establishments) of the Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC Chapter 6-6) to add new 
Chapter 6 (Environmentally Acceptable Packaging and Products) of Title 6 (Sanitation and 
Health) of the Watsonville Municipal Code which expands the prohibition to include, in addition 
to take-out food service ware, a new definition of the prohibited materials and a prohibition on 
the sale of cups, plates, bowls, coolers, pool or beach toys, packing peanuts or other 
packaging materials made of plastic foam, except as exempted.  

DISCUSSION: 
In March 2009, the City Council adopted an ordinance (WMC Chapter 6-6) that prohibits the use 
of polystyrene foam packaging by restaurants for take-out food serviceware.  The 
implementation of this ordinance was smooth and near-universal compliance by Watsonville 
businesses and events has been achieved. Approximately once or twice a year, staff notice or 
receive reports from the public of non-compliance and follow up directly with owners and 
managers to educate and assist in full implementation of the ordinance. After almost five 
years, the prohibition on use of polystyrene food serviceware has resulted in a reduction of 

6.1a

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 2 of 3 

 
NL  2/5/2014 2:33:17 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Plastic Foam Products\Staff Report Plastic Foam Products (2-5-14 Rev. 2).doc 

 

polystyrene food packaging waste in the City’s landfill, in litter along roadsides and in our 
wetlands.   
 
According to City environmental education staff and local environmental organizations, 
polystyrene foam/plastic foam products are still one of the most common types of litter found 
during litter cleanups. The source of this dangerous litter is typically picnic items left behind or 
blown from trash cans in the parks or on beaches.  Plastic foam coolers are also discarded in 
parks or on beaches because they break easily and are inexpensive to replace. Another 
source of current plastic foam litter is spillage of packaging peanuts from garbage carts or 
containers onto City streets and parking lots.  
 
When discarded into the environment, plastic foam products break into small pieces.  Wind 
easily carries this lightweight material into waterways including our wetlands, the Pajaro River 
and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The bits of plastic foam are mistaken as 
food by birds, fish and marine mammals. When ingested, it harms the digestive tract, often 
leading to choking, starvation and death. 
 
It remains economically impractical to recycle most plastic foam, due to its bulk, light weight, 
and lack of a market for the material.  According to the Federal Environmental Protection 
Agency, styrene, a component of polystyrene foam is a suspected carcinogen and neurotoxin, 
which potentially threatens human health.  In Watsonville, plastic foam is the only type of 
plastic not accepted in the recycling system due to lack of a market for this material. 
 
PROPOSED NEW CHAPTER 6-6 
 
It is recommended that the proposed new Chapter 6-6, contain a new to prohibition on the sale 
of additional plastic foam products including cups, plates, bowls, coolers and toys sold in retail 
establishments. These items are typically purchased and used indoors or outdoors for picnics 
and barbeques in the backyard, in parks or at the beach.  
 
An important recommended addition to the new ordinance is in the definition of the prohibited 
material. It is proposed that the prohibited material to be changed from “polystyrene foam” to 
“plastic foam.” There are now products made from plastic foam that do not contain 
polystyrene. It is the consistency of the plastic foam that makes these materials lightweight, 
easily broken apart and dispersed into the environment and mistaken as food by wildlife. 
 
The proposed addition of retail sale of plastic foam products is consistent with the ordinances 
in place in the County of Santa Cruz, City of Santa Cruz and City of Capitola. The County of 
Santa Cruz and the cities of Santa Cruz and Capitola have enacted ordinances banning the 
sale of polystyrene/plastic foam products in 2012. The proposed changes to the City of 
Watsonville ordinance is essentially identical to that of our neighboring jurisdictions 
 
The proposed restriction of additional plastic foam products in Watsonville would provide 
additional protection for the health and safety of the residents and our natural environment, 
waterways, and wildlife; enhance the marine environment of the Monterey Bay and Pacific 
Ocean, limit greenhouse gas impacts, and conserve space in the City Landfill. 



Page 3 of 3 

 
NL  2/5/2014 2:33:17 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Plastic Foam Products\Staff Report Plastic Foam Products (2-5-14 Rev. 2).doc 

 

 
Alternative products exist for almost all common uses of polystyrene/plastic foam. Products 
made from paper, cornstarch, or sugarcane will decompose when placed compost bins or in 
the landfill, eventually turning into soil. All non-polystyrene/non-foam plastic items can be 
recycled in the City’s blue carts. The best alternative for picnic supplies is re-usable bowls, 
plates, cups and coolers. Lightweight plastic items can be carried home in a sturdy cooler, 
washed and used many times.  
 
Exclusions 
 
It is recommended that several items be excluded from the amended ordinance due to lack of 
alternatives. Some examples are the polystyrene packaging used for televisions, computers, 
and other electronics and packaging for medical supplies. The proposed ordinance exempts 
food products which are packaged outside the City and packaging for meat products, as well 
as products where plastic foam is used for insulation or flotation purposes and is completely 
encased by a more durable material. Examples of this include surfboards, boats, and some 
construction materials.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The proposed ordinance is consistent with the Strategic Plan goals of improving infrastructure, 
including the conserving space in the City Landfill and the general cleanliness and appearance 
of City streets and parks by reducing litter. In addition, the amended ordinance would be 
consistent with the goal of improving the City’s image by aligning with other local jurisdictions 
that have passed similar ordinance to protect local water resources and the Monterey Bay 
National Marine Sanctuary. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Public Works and Utilities Department staff will prepare outreach information. Enforcement will 
also be handled by existing staff.  Based on experience with the implementation of the 2009 
ban on polystyrene foam take-out food packaging, staff does not anticipate any significant 
increase in workload or costs resulting from the proposed ordinance. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council could chose to not adopt an ordinance prohibiting the sale of polystyrene 
foam/plastic foam products. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None.  
 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



Ord No.           (CM) 1 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx 
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM     

AJS ______ CJP ______PWU ______ 

ORDINANCE NO.   Introduction  (CM) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REPEALING CHAPTER 6 (REQUIRING THE USE OF 
RECYCLABLE, BIODEGRADABLE OR COMPOSTABLE TAKE-OUT 
SERVICE WARE AT RETAIL FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS) IN ITS 
ENTIRETY AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 6 (ENVIRONMENTALLY 
ACCEPTABLE PACKAGING AND PRODUCTS) OF TITLE 6 
(SANITATION AND HEALTH) OF THE WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO EXPAND THE PROHIBITION TO INCLUDE, IN ADDITION TO 
TAKE-OUT FOOD SERVICE WARE, THE RETAIL SALE OF PLASTIC 
FOAM CUPS, PLATES, BOWLS, AS WELL AS COOLERS, POOL OR 
BEACH TOYS, PACKING PEANUTS OR OTHER PLASTIC FOAM 
PRODUCTS, EXCEPT AS EXEMPTED 

Repeals Ordinance Number 1245-09 (CM) 

Table of Contents 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. ............................................................................................ 1 
CHAPTER 6-6  ENVIRONMENTALLY ACCEPTABLE PACKAGING AND 
PRODUCTS ................................................................................................................ 2 

Sec. 6-6.100 Findings and Intent. ......................................................................... 2 
Sec. 6-6.101 Definitions. ...................................................................................... 4 
Sec. 6-6.102 Plastic Foam Food Service Ware Products Prohibited. ................... 7 
Sec. 6-6.103 Prohibited Sales of Plastic Foam Products. .................................... 8 

Sec. 6-6.104 Required Biodegradable Compostable, Or Recyclable Take-Out 
Food Service Ware. ........................................................................ 8 

Sec. 6-6.105 Exemptions for Biodegradable, Compostable or Recyclable Food 
Service Ware and Plastic Foam Products. ...................................... 9 

Sec. 6-6.106 Enforcement and Notice of Violation. ............................................ 10 
SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. ........................................................................................ 10 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. .................................................................................. 10 

 o-0-o 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. 

Title 6 (Sanitation and Health) of the Watsonville Municipal Code is hereby 

amended by repealing Chapter 6 (Requiring the Use of Recyclable, Biodegradable or 

CITY COUNCIL 6.1e

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Ord No.           (CM) 2  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

Compostable Take-out Food Service Ware at Retail Food Establishments) in its entirety 

and adding a new Chapter 6 entitled Environmentally Acceptable Packaging and 

Products to read in words and figures as follows: 

 

CHAPTER 6-6 
ENVIRONMENTALLY ACCEPTABLE PACKAGING AND PRODUCTS 

 
 
Sec. 6-6.100 Findings and Intent. 
 

The Watsonville City Council finds and declares that: 
 

(a)   The City of Watsonville has a duty to protect its natural environment, its 

economy, and the health of its citizens. 

(b) Within the City of Watsonville, there are rare and unique freshwater 

wetlands that are directly impacted by stormwater run-off from City streets and storm 

drains. These wetlands are home to over 200 species of resident and migratory birds, 

mammals, fish and native plants. The City of Watsonville is also located close to the 

Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. This federal preserve supports one of the 

most diverse and delicate ecosystems in the world. This sanctuary provides habitat for 

at least 33 mammals, 94 species of seabirds, 345 species of fish, and contains the 

largest kelp forest in the nation. 

(c) As litter, plastic foam is highly durable. There is a prevalence of plastic 

foam packaging littering City parks and public places, streets and roads, waterways, 

storm drains and wetlands. Plastic foam breaks into smaller pieces and because it is 

lightweight, may be picked up by the wind even when it has been disposed of properly. 

This litter ultimately floats, or is blown, into the local creeks, wetlands, the Pájaro River 



Ord No.           (CM) 3  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

and the Monterey Bay. This litter creates a financial cost to City residents and an 

environmental cost to natural resources.  

(d) Marine animals and birds often confuse plastic foam products with pieces 

of food, and when ingested, it can impact their digestive tracts, often leading to death. 

(e)   Prohibiting the use of plastic foam products and replacing them with 

biodegradable, compostable or recyclable products will protect the Wetlands of 

Watsonville, Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary, City residents and visitors, and 

will support the City’s goal of reducing waste and litter for a cleaner environment for 

generations to come.  

(f)   Discarded plastic foam products constitute a significant portion of the 

City’s waste stream. Laws, policies and regulations pertaining to plastic foam products 

are a vital component in the City’s efforts to reduce the amount of disposed waste. 

(g)   Products that are biodegradable, compostable, or recyclable is the most 

responsible and sustainable choice for the City’s citizenry and its environment. When 

products are recycled, natural resources are spared and landfill space is preserved. 

 (h)   Plastic foam products made from expanded plastic foam (commonly called 

Styrofoam) are not biodegradable, compostable, returnable, or locally recyclable.  

(i)   It is not economically feasible at this time to recycle plastic foam in the 

City of Watsonville. There are currently no brokers or end users willing to accept this 

material for recycling without incurring unacceptable costs to the City.  

(j)   Biodegradable take-out packaging such as cups, plates, clamshell 

containers, and cutlery are now made from paper, sugarcane stalk, corn bi-products, 

and potato starch. As these products degrade, they pose less of a danger to the 



Ord No.           (CM) 4  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

environment and are not a permanent blight on the landscape. These products are 

available locally.  

(k)  Recyclable take-out packaging items are locally available and are made 

from plastics currently accepted in Watsonville’s recycling program. 

(l) Alternatives are locally available for plastic foam coolers, plates, cups, 

bowls typically purchased at retail establishments for use at indoor and outdoor events 

such as picnics and barbeques. 

(m) Alternatives are locally available for plastic foam packaging materials 

including peanuts.  

Sec. 6-6.101 Definitions. 
 

For the purposes of this chapter, certain words and phrases used are defined as 

follows: 

(a)   “Affordable" shall mean that a biodegradable, compostable or recyclable 

product may cost up to 15 percent more than the purchase cost of the non-

biodegradable, non-compostable or non-recyclable alternative(s). 

(b)   “ASTM Standard” shall mean meeting the standards of the American 

Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) International Standards D6400 or D6868 for 

biodegradable and compostable plastics, as those standards may be amended. 

(c)   “Biodegradable” shall mean the ability of organic matter to break down 

from a complex to a more simple form through the action of bacteria..  

(d)   “City of Watsonville Facility” shall mean any building, structure or vehicle 

owned and operated by the City of Watsonville, its agents, agencies, and departments. 



Ord No.           (CM) 5  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

(e)   “City of Watsonville Contractor" shall mean any person or entity that has a 

contract with the City of Watsonville for work or improvement to be performed, for a 

franchise, concession, goods and services, or supplies to be purchased at the expense 

of the City of Watsonville.  

(f)   “Compostable” shall mean all the materials in the product or package will 

break down, or otherwise become part of, usable compost (e.g. soil-conditioning 

material, mulch) in a safe and timely manner. Compostable products must meet ASTM-

Standards for compostability and any bio-plastic or plastic-like product must be clearly 

labeled, preferably with a color symbol, to allow proper identification such that the 

collector and processor can easily distinguish the ASTM standard compostable plastic 

from non-ASTM standard compostable plastic.  

(g)   “Director” shall mean the Director of Public Works and Utilities or their 

designee. 

(h)   “Food Service Ware" interchangeable with “to go” packaging and “food 

packaging material” and includes: all containers, clamshells, bowls, plates, trays, 

cartons, cups, lids, straws, stirrers, forks, spoons, knives, napkins and other items 

designed for one-time use for prepared foods, including without limitation, service ware 

for eat-in and takeout foods and/or leftovers from partially consumed meals prepared by 

food providers.  

(i)  “Food Provider” shall mean any vendor, business, organization, entity, 

group or individual, including retail food establishments, located in the City of 

Watsonville that offers food or beverage to the public. 



Ord No.           (CM) 6  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

(j)   “Person” shall mean an individual, business, event promoter, trust, firm, 

joint stock company, corporation, non-profit, including a government corporation, 

partnership, or association. 

(k)   “Plastic Foam” shall mean blown expanded and extruded polystyrene 

(sometimes called StyrofoamTM) or other plastic foams which are processed by any 

number of techniques including, but not limited to, fusion of monomer spheres 

(expanded bead plastic), injection molding, foam molding, and extrusion-blown molding 

(extruded foam plastic). Polystyrene and other plastic foam is generally used to make 

cups, bowls, plates, trays, clamshell containers, coolers, ice chests, shipping boxes, 

packing peanuts and beach and pool toys.  

(l) “Plastic Foam Products” shall mean any items made of plastic foam such as 

coolers, ice chests, cups, bowls, plates, clamshells, shipping boxes, containers, 

packaging peanuts, pool or beach toys or any other product containing polystyrene or 

other  plastic foam that is not wholly encapsulated or encased by a more durable 

material. 

(m)   “Prepared Food” shall mean food or beverages prepared by retail food 

establishments, which are served, packaged, cooked, chopped, sliced, mixed, brewed, 

frozen, squeezed or otherwise prepared within the City of Watsonville. Prepared food 

does not include raw, butchered meats, fish and/or poultry sold from a butcher case or 

similar retail establishment.  

(n)   “Recyclable” shall mean any material that is accepted by the City of 

Watsonville recycling program, including, but not limited to paper, glass, aluminum, 

cardboard, and all plastics except plastic foam items. 



Ord No.           (CM) 7  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

(o)  “Retail Food Establishment” shall mean all sales outlets, stores, shops, 

vehicles or other places of business located within the City which operate primarily to 

sell or convey foods or beverages directly to the ultimate consumer, which foods or 

beverages are predominantly contained, wrapped or held in or on packaging. Retail 

food establishment shall include, but not be limited to, any place where food is 

prepared, mixed, cooked, baked, smoked, preserved, bottled, packaged, handled, 

stored, manufactured and sold or offered for sale, including, but not limited to, any fixed 

or mobile restaurant, drive-in, coffee shop, cafeteria, short-order cafe, delicatessen, 

luncheonette, grill, sandwich shop, soda fountain, hotel, motel, movie house, theatre, 

bed and breakfast inn, tavern, bar, cocktail lounge, nightclub, roadside stand, take-out,  

prepared food place, industrial feeding establishment, catering kitchen, mobile food 

preparation unit, commissary, special event, grocery store, public food market, produce 

stand, food stand, or similar place in which food or drink is prepared for sale, or for 

service, on the premises or elsewhere, and any other establishment or operation where 

food is processed, prepared, stored, served or provided for the public and any 

organization, group or individual which provides food as part of its service. 

(p)  “Special Events Promoter” shall mean an applicant for any special events 

permit issued by the City or any City employee(s) responsible for any City-organized 

special event.  

Sec. 6-6.102 Plastic Foam Food Service Ware Products Prohibited. 
 

(a) Food providers within the City of Watsonville may not provide prepared 

food in or on any product that contains plastic foam. 



Ord No.           (CM) 8  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

(b) Products that contain plastic foam are prohibited from use in all City of 

Watsonville facilities. 

(c) City of Watsonville contractors in the performance of City contracts and 

special events promoters and vendors may not provide prepared food in products that 

contain plastic foam. 

Sec. 6-6.103 Prohibited Sales of Plastic Foam Products. 
 

No person, vendor, business or event promoter in the City of Watsonville may  

sell, rent or otherwise provide any plastic foam product which is not wholly encapsulated 

or encased within a more durable material, except as exempted herein. This specifically 

includes, but in not limited to, cups, plates, bowls, clamshells and other products 

primarily for food service use, as well as coolers, containers, ice chests, shipping boxes, 

pool or beach toys, packing peanuts or other packaging materials.  

Sec. 6-6.104 Required Biodegradable Compostable, Or Recyclable Take-Out Food 
Service Ware.  
 

(a) All food providers within the City of Watsonville shall use biodegradable, 

compostable or recyclable products, unless there is no affordable alternative available 

as determined by the Director. Food providers may charge a “take-out fee” to cover any 

difference in cost. 

(b) All City of Watsonville facilities shall use food service ware products that 

are biodegradable, compostable or recyclable. 

(c) City of Watsonville contractors, and special events promoters and vendors 

shall use biodegradable, compostable, or recyclable food service ware products while 

performing under a City of Watsonville contract or permit. 

  



Ord No.           (CM) 9  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

Sec. 6-6.105 Exemptions for Biodegradable, Compostable or Recyclable Food 
Service Ware and Plastic Foam Products. 

 
(a) The Director may grant up to a one-year extension for the implementation 

of requirement set forth in this ordinance upon the food provider showing, in writing, that 

this ordinance would create an undue hardship or practical difficulty not generally 

applicable to other persons in similar circumstances. The Director shall put the decision 

to grant or deny a one-year exemption in writing, and the Director’s decision shall be 

final. 

(b) An extension application shall include all information necessary for the 

Director to make a decision, including but not limited to documentation showing factual 

support for the claimed exemption. The Director may require the applicant to provide 

additional information.  

(c) The Director may approve the extension application in whole or in part, 

with or without conditions. 

(d) Foods prepared or packaged outside the City of Watsonville and sold 

inside the City of Watsonville are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter. Purveyors 

of food prepared or packaged outside the City of Watsonville are encouraged to follow 

the provisions of this Chapter. 

(e) Exemptions to allow for the sale or provision of plastic foam products may 

be granted by the Director, if the vendor can demonstrate in writing the public health 

and safety requirements of medical necessity of use of the product.  

(f) Meat trays are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter. 

(g) Products made from plastic foam that is fully encapsulated or encased by 

a more durable material are exempt from this Chapter. Examples include surfboards, 



Ord No.           (CM) 10  
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-6 Plastic Foam Products FINAL.docx   
ri 2/6/2014 7:55:14 AM                                                    
   

boats, life preservers, and craft supplies, which are fully encapsulated, and durable 

coolers not principally composed of plastic foam. 

(h) Construction products made from plastic foam are exempted from this 

ordinance if used in compliance with building and stormwater regulations and used in 

manner that prevents plastic foam from being released into the environment.  

(i) In a situation deemed by the City Manager to be an emergency for the 

immediate preservation of public peace, health, and safety, the City and its vendors 

shall be exempt from the provisions of this Chapter.  

Sec. 6-6.106 Enforcement and Notice of Violation. 
 

(a) Violations of this ordinance may be enforced in accordance with Article I of 

Title 1 of this Code.  

(b) The Director shall be responsible for enforcing this Chapter and shall have 

authority to issue citations for violations. 

(c) The City of Watsonville in accordance with applicable law, may inspect 

any vendor, food provider or retail establishment premises to verify compliance. 

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 
 

This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

This ordinance shall be in force and take effect thirty (30) days after its final 

adoption. 

 
****************************** 



City Council _______ 

Page 1 of 4
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Amend WMC Reusable Bags\Staff Report Reusable bags SP.doc  
(Revised 8/19/10) 

City of Watsonville 

Public Works & Utilities Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: January 30, 2014 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Director of Public Works & Utilities 
Nancy Lockwood, Environmental Projects Manager 

SUBJECT: Ordinance to amend Watsonville Municipal Code Chapter 6-7 
(Reducing Single-use Plastic Carryout Bags) Section 101(e) to re-
define "reusable bags" changing the thickness requirement from 
2.25 mils to 4 mils and contain 25% post-consumer recycled material. 

AGENDA ITEM: February 11, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council amend Watsonville Municipal Code (WMC) Chapter 6-
7 (Reducing Single-use Plastic Carryout Bags), Section 101 (e) to change the definition of 
plastic reusable bags from those of a thickness of 2.25 mils to those of 4 mils or greater and 
made with recycled material. It is also recommended that WMC Chapter 6-7.102 (g) be 
amended to prohibit free distribution of paper or plastic bags.  

DISCUSSION: 
In September, 2012, the City Council adopted an ordinance (WMC Chapter 6-7), entitled, 
“Reducing Single-Use Plastic Carryout Bags.” The stated intent, contained within the ordinance is 
“to eliminate the common use of plastic single-use carryout bags, encourage the use of reusable 
bags by consumers and retailers, and to reduce the consumption of single-use bags in general.” 
Single-use plastic bags are a hazard to the wildlife in our wetlands, cause blight as litter in our 
neighborhoods and are made from a non-renewable resource.   

The existing ordinance prohibits the provision of single-use plastic bags (with several 
exceptions) for carryout of purchased items and imposed a fee for purchase of paper bags. 
Starting in September 2012 and for the first year of implementation, the fee charged for paper 
bags was $.10.  

In September 2013, the paper bag fee increased to $.25.  The implementation of the ordinance 
by Watsonville businesses was smooth and compliance has been overall very good. Of note, 
the portion of shoppers observed bringing their own reusable bags to the store jumped from 
approximately 10% to over 60% when the paper bag fee increased to $.25 in September 2013. 

6.2a

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 2 of 4 

 
Writer’s name  1/30/2014 4:16:45 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Amend WMC Reusable Bags\Staff Report Reusable bags SP.doc 

 

Staff was asked to consider the option of reducing the fee for paper bags as such a change 
was under consideration by the City of Capitola. Last week, the Capitola City Council decided 
to leave the $.25 per paper bag fee in place. It was determined that the $.25 fee is a strong 
motivator for customers to remember to bring their reusable bags to the store. The County of 
Santa Cruz had no plans to reduce their $.25 per paper bag fee.  
 
The City of Santa plastic bag ordinance went into effect April 2013 with a $.10 per paper bag 
fee which will increase to $.25 per bag in April 2014. Due to the notable impact of the higher 
fee on customer behavior as observed in Watsonville and elsewhere, it is recommended that 
the City of Watsonville retain the $.25 per bag fee. 
 
The existing ordinance contains a provision that exempts shoppers who are participating in 
government assistance program such at WIC and food stamps from the bag fee. Staff has 
made substantial efforts to educate Watsonville residents about the bag ban by providing 
thousands of reusable bags at the annual Earth Day/Day of the Child event as well as in front 
of the retail stores. Several low-income and disabled residents have contacted staff for 
clarification about the ordinance. Reusable bags and instructions were provided to them and 
one local store was contacted to ensure compliance with the exemption for individuals using 
government assistance programs. 
 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
 
The existing ordinance includes two exceptions to the ban on plastic bags. It allows for the sale 
reusable plastic bags, including those made of plastic, as long as the thickness is 2.25 mils or 
greater. The ordinance also allows for the distribution of reusable bags without charge “during 
limited-duration promotional events.” Several local grocery stores have implemented practices 
that appear to be in compliance with these two exceptions contained in the ordinance but are 
not in compliance with the intent of the ordinance. 
 
During most or all of the first year the ordinance was in effect, several local stores gave away 
free plastic bags to customers. The bags met the ordinance definition of “reusable” in that they 
were 2.25 mils thick, have handles, are made from LDPE plastic, and are labeled “reusable.” 
More recently these stores are now selling, at the checkout stand, the same 2.25 mil LDPE 
plastic bag for $.25. At these stores, the customers are not observed to be bringing these or 
other bags back to reuse. As a result, more, not less plastic is being used in these thicker bags 
and the practice of single-use shopping bags continues.  
 
According to the local environmental organization, Save Our Shores, this practice of selling a 
reusable bag for $.25 is also taking place in other jurisdictions in Santa Cruz, Monterey and 
Santa Clara counties as a way to comply with letter of bag ban ordinances while still supplying 
most customers with a plastic bag that is used only once as a shopping bag. This practice is 
not compatible with the intent of Chapter 6-7 to eliminate single-use plastic bags and 
encourage the reuse of shopping bags. 
 
In order to resolve these issues, two amendments are proposed. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 
Writer’s name  1/30/2014 4:16:45 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Amend WMC Reusable Bags\Staff Report Reusable bags SP.doc 

 

1. It is proposed that the definition of “Reusable bags” in WMC Chapter 6-7.101 (e) be 
changed as follows. 

 
Existing WMC Chapter 6-7.101 (e): 
(e) “Reusable bag” shall mean any bag with handles that is specifically designed and 
manufactured for multiple reuse, and is either (1) made of cloth or other washable fabric, or (2) 
made of durable material that is at least two and one-fourth (2.25) mils thick. A “reusable 
bag” may be made of recyclable plastic such as high density polyethylene (HDPE), low 
density polyethylene (LDPE0) or polypropylene. 
 
 
Proposed New Text for WMC Chapter 6-7.101 (e): 
“Reusable bag” shall mean any bag with handles that is specifically designed and 
manufactured for multiple reuse, and is either (1) made of cloth or other washable fabric, or (2) 
made of durable material that is at least four mils (4.0) mils thick. A “reusable bag” may be 
made of plastic such as high density polyethylene (HDPE), low density polyethylene (LDPE0, 
or polypropylene and shall contain a minimum of 25% post-consumer recycled plastic. 
 
By changing the definition of “reusable bags” to those made with thicker plastic and made with 
recycled content, we can be reasonable certain retailers will be discouraged from providing 
inexpensive bags (that end up not being reused as a shopping bag) at the checkout stand. In 
addition, customers who do choose to purchase these more substantial bags will have an 
inherent incentive to bring them back to reuse. 
 

2. It is recommended that WMC Chapter 6-7. 102 (g) be amended as follows: 
 

Existing WMC Chapter 6-7. 102 (g): 
(g) Retail establishments are strongly encouraged to make reusable bags available for 
sale to customers at a reasonable price. Reusable bags which meet the requirements of this 
chapter may be distributed without charge during limited-duration promotional events. 
 
Proposed New Text for WMC Chapter 6-7. 102 (g) 
Retail establishments are prohibited from providing bags made from paper, plastic or 
other material free of charge or below actual cost. The minimum fee for any bag is $.25. 
Also prohibited are practices that have an effect of discouraging customers from using 
reusable bags. 
 
It is anticipated that the recommended changes will ensure full compliance with the City 
Council’s intent to eliminate single-use plastic bags and to encourage the use of reusable 
shopping bags. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN: 
The proposed ordinance is consistent with the Strategic Plan goals of improving infrastructure, 
including the conserving space in the City Landfill and the general cleanliness and appearance 
of City streets and parks by reducing litter. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 
Writer’s name  1/30/2014 4:16:45 PM 
M:\Public Works & Utilities\STAFF REPORTS\2014\02-11-14\Amend WMC Reusable Bags\Staff Report Reusable bags SP.doc 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Staff does not anticipate any significant increase in workload resulting from the proposed 
amendment to the ordinance. The bag ordinance is already in effect and the majority of 
Watsonville businesses are in full compliance. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The City Council could chose not make the proposed change to the ordinance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 
 
 
cc: City Attorney 



Ord No.           (CM) 1
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-7 Reusable Bags .docx 
ri 2/6/2014 1:20:47 PM      AJS ______ CJP ______ PWU ______

ORDINANCE NO.    Introduction   (CM) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AMENDING SUBSECTION (e) TO SECTION 6-7.101 
(DEFINITIONS) OF CHAPTER 7 (REDUCING SINGLE-USE PLASTIC 
CARRYOUT BAGS) OF TITLE 6 (SANITATION AND HEALTH) OF THE 
WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE CHANGING THE THICKNESS 
REQUIRMENT OF PLASTIC REUSABLE BAGS FROM 2.25 MILS TO 4 
MILS AND CONTAINING A MINIMUM OF 25% POST-CONSUMER 
RECYCLED MATERIAL 

Amends Ordinance No. 1284-12 (CM) 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. 

Chapter 7 (Reducing Single-Use Plastic Carryout Bags) of Title 6 (Sanitation and 

Health) of the Watsonville Municipal Code is hereby amended by amending Subsection 

6-7.101 (e) to read in words and figures as follows: 

Sec. 6-7.101 Definitions. 

(e) “Reusable bag” shall mean any bag with handles that is specifically 

designed and manufactured for multiple reuse, and is either (1) made of cloth or other 

washable fabric, or (2) made of durable material that is at least four (4.0) mils thick. A 

“reusable bag” may be made of plastic such as high density polyethylene (HDPE), low 

density polyethylene (LDPE), or polypropylene and shall contain a minimum of 25% 

post-consumer recycled plastic. Practices that have an effect of discouraging customers 

from using reusable bags are prohibited. 

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 

This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

CITY COUNCIL 6.2e

carlos.palacios
Approved



Ord No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\WMC 6-7 Reusable Bags .docx  
ri 2/6/2014 1:20:47 PM 

2 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

This ordinance shall be in force and take effect thirty (30) days after its final 

adoption. 

 
****************************** 



Page 1 of 3
2/6/2014 4:26:16 PM 
P:\BEATRIZ\Council Staff Reports\2014\Initiative District Appt.docx 

City of Watsonville 
City Clerk’s Office 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 6, 2014 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Election of Mayor and Appointment of Council Members Initiative 
Petitions 

MEETING: February 11, 2014 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
MOTION: (1) That City Council accept the City Clerk Certificate of Sufficiency of the 
Initiative Petitions for Council Vacancies and Election of Mayor; and (2) directing the 
City Attorney to return on February 25, 2014, with a resolution ordering the Election of 
Mayor and Appointment of Members Initiatives be placed on the ballot for the election to 
be held on June 3, 2014. 

DISCUSSION: 

Petition. On July 1, 2013, Rick Danna, Yolanda Ruiz Danna, and Georgia Acosta filed 
a Notice of Intent to Circulate (Petition), to amend the Charter of the City of Watsonville 
to require the City to call an election whenever a vacancy occurs in the office of the 
Council.  

Rhea W. DeHart, Delia Mendez, and Cathy Perez filed a Notice of Intent to Circulate 
(Petition) to amend the Charter of the City of Watsonville to change the method of how 
the mayor is elected. (See Attachment 1 for both Notices) 

On July 16, 2013, the Petitioners were provided with the City Attorney’s Titles and 
Summaries, as required by the California Elections Code Section 9203 (See Attachment 
2). The Notice of Intent and Title and Summary were published by the proponents on 
July 20, 2013, and the Certificates of Publication were filed with the City Clerk’s Office 
on July 22, 2013. 

The Petitioners returned the petitions with signatures to my office on January 14, 2014. 
After determining that the number of “prima facie” or gross signatures for the Council 
Vacancies petition was 4,099, which is in excess of the required minimum number of 

CITY COUNCIL 8.3a

beatriz.flores
Approved



Page 2 of 3 

2/6/2014 4:26:16 PM 
P:\BEATRIZ\Council Staff Reports\2014\Initiative District Appt.docx 

 

2,408 (15%); and the number of signatures for the Election of Mayor petition was 4,070 
(15%) also in excess. I accepted the petitions for filing.  
 
As of July 16, 2013, there were 16,052 registered voters in the City, as indicated in the 
last report filed on February 25, 2013, with the Secretary of State. Elections Code 
Section 9266 requires the City Clerk to examine the petition in the same manner as 
county elections is required under Elections Code 9114 and to certify the results of the 
examination to the Council under Elections Code 9215 at its next regular meeting after 
certification.  
 
On January 27th, 2014, the Petitioners were issued Certificates of Examination, 
certifying the petitions were sufficient with 2,410 (15%) valid signatures for Council 
Vacancies and 2,423 (15%) valid signatures for Election of Mayor (See Attachment 3).  
 
Elections Code Subdivision 9255 (c), Paragraph (1) provides that an amendment to a 
city charter proposed by a petition signed by 15% of the registered voters of the City 
shall be submitted to the voters at the next established election occurring not less than 
88 days after the date of the order of election. 
 
Council Vacancies. The proposed amendment would replace existing Section 406 in 
its entirety and replace it with a new Section 406 as follows:  
 
California Government Code Section 1770 as it now exists of may hereafter be 
amended list the conditions, upon the occurrence of, creates a vacancy. If a vacancy 
shall occur in the Office of a Council Member, then the vacancy shall be only by the 
election of a new Council Member to be held at either a General Municipal Election or a 
Special Municipal Election which the Council must cause to be held no later than 
ninety (90) days from the date of the occurrence of the vacancy.  
 
The proposed initiative would also amend Section 1503 of the Charter of the City of 
Watsonville to add Subdivision (k) to define Vacancy.  
 

Since District elections were ordered in 1989, the Council has had nine vacancies. All 
the vacancies have been filled pursuant to the current Section 406. The City developed 
a process and it has been using it ever since (public notice is given, applications are 
submitted, Council interviews the candidates during noticed and open meetings, etc). 
The only time the Council had to order an election was in 1999 to fill the vacancy 
created by Council Member Alcala. The table below shows all vacancies since 1990. 

Appointment 
Date 

Council 
District 

Vacancy 
Created by 

Member 

Number of 
Applicants 

Member 
Appointed 

4/23/1991 7 Kacsmaryk  4 Bobeda 

12/8/1998 6 Campos  4 Doering-Nielsen 

Election Held 
8/10/1999 

1 Alcala 2 Lopez 

4/22/2003 1 Lopez 4 Bersamin 



Page 3 of 3 

2/6/2014 4:26:16 PM 
P:\BEATRIZ\Council Staff Reports\2014\Initiative District Appt.docx 

 

5/8/2006 6 Doering-Nielsen 2 Erickson 

3/26/2009 7 Skillicorn 5 Bilicich 

11/30/2010 2 Alejo 1 Rios 

5/3/2011 3 Neighbors 2 Hurst 

3/22/2012 1 Bersamin 2 Hernandez 

 
I conducted an informal listserv survey to ascertain how many charter cities have an 
option to appoint. Every City who responded had the option to appoint and then call for 
an election if an appointment is not made; therefore, Watsonville would be unique in 
that respect.  
 
Election of Mayor. The proposed initiative replaces existing Sections 500 and 504 of 
the Charter of the City of Watsonville regarding the Appointment of Mayor and Mayor 
Pro Tempore. The initiative would require the Council to elect the mayor and mayor pro-
tempore in the numeric order of the Council district they represent. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The City Clerk’s Office has only myself and Irwin Ortiz, so I asked the Santa Cruz 
County Elections Department to examine the signatures at a cost of $6,400. 
 
The cost of a special election during a State primary is $2 to $3 per registered voter. 
The City currently has approximately 14,278 registered voters; therefore, the cost of a 
special election would be from $28,556 to $42,834.  
 
The Council must amend the 2013-2014 budget to appropriate such amount from the 
General Fund.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Notices of Intent to Circulate Petition, dated July 1, 2013.  
2. City Attorney’s Titles and Summaries  
3. City Clerk’s Certificates of Examination of City Initiative Petition 



Attachment 1
Page 1 of 7 



Attachment 1
Page 2 of 7



Attachment 1
Page 3 of 7



Attachment 1
Page 4 of 7



Attachment 1
Page 5 of 7



Attachment 1
Page 6 of 7



Attachment 1
Page 7 of 7



Attachment 2
Page 1 of 2



Attachment 2
Page 2 of 2



Attachment 3
Page 1 of 2



Attachment 3
Page 2 of 2



Page 1 of 3

2/6/2014 4:51:36 PM 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\Timing of Election Staff Report.docx 

City of Watsonville 
City Attorney’s Office 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: February 6, 2014 

TO: Mayor, City Council 

FROM: Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Election Timing in Watsonville 

AGENDA ITEM: February 11, 2014 City Council 

APPLICABLE LAW 
Article 13 of Watsonville’s City Charter regulates Watsonville municipal elections.  Section 
1301 defines a “Special Municipal Election” as an election other than one held in November of 
even numbered years.  Charter Section 1302 says all municipal elections shall be held 
pursuant to the California Elections Code to the extent not inconsistent with the city charter.  

Division 10 (Sections 10000 et seq.) of the California Elections Code regulates municipal 
candidate elections. Unless otherwise stated, all further references in this memo to section 
numbers will mean sections of the California Elections Code.  

Section 1770 of the California Government Code in Chapter 4 of Division 4 governs when a 
municipal office is vacant.  

BACKGROUND 
Candidate elections are highly regulated and precisely timed events. Watsonville has not 
conducted its own elections since 1994. Instead the City contracts with the County Elections 
Department and County employees actually conduct the election.  The City does not own 
voting booths, voting machines poll signs or other equipment necessary to conduct an election. 
 The City does not have policies, procedures, customs, systems or practices in place to 
conduct elections. Without exception, the County Elections Department has been selected to 
conduct City elections because it provides competent service and is efficient and economical. 
The County Elections Department prepares ballots, prints and mails voter pamphlets, mails 
absentee ballots, mails military ballots, arranges for polling places, provides voting machines, 
delivers ballots to the polling places, assigns the polling places, insures accessibility at each 
site, hires and pays poll workers and inspectors, delivers the ballots from the polls for counting, 
counts the ballots, recounts as appropriate and returns a canvass of the ballot results to the 
City Clerk.   

CITY COUNCIL 8.3b



Page 2 of 3 

 
2/6/2014 4:51:36 PM 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\Timing of Election Staff Report.docx 

 

The last Watsonville stand alone single district city council election was in District 1 in 1999 
after the resignation of Al Alcala. The County Elections Office charged the City $12.33 per 
registered voter for the election held August 10, 1999, and Rafael Lopez was elected. There 
were approximately 705 registered voters in District 1 then. The County charged the City 
$8,694 to conduct the election. The replacement of Al Alcala took almost six months1.  On that 
instance, however the Council took 30 days to try to appoint someone but no candidate was 
able to win the four votes necessary. The time from the date the election was ordered until the 
date of the election was 119 days. By way of comparison, a General or Special Election 
conducted according to the Elections Code will take a minimum time of 114 days. 
 

The County Elections Department website indicates the estimated charge to conduct “stand 
alone elections” in 2014 for jurisdictions similar to Watsonville Council districts are from $6 to 
$8 per registered voter.  For example, District 7 now has about 2,800 registered voters. If the 
County charged the mid-range of $7.00 per registered voter, a District 7 election would cost 
the City about $19,600 (2,800 registered voters x $7 per registered voter).  
 
ANALYSIS 
A group of citizens has proposed a ballot measure to change how a Council vacancy is filled in 
Watsonville. The proposal prevents Council appointment to a vacant seat and instead requires 
an election to the vacant seat at either a General Municipal Election or at a “Special Municipal 
Election” which the Council must cause to be held no later than ninety days from the date of 
the occurrence of the vacancy.” Such a proposal is unusual and may be unprecedented in 
California. 
 
Elections pursuant to the Elections Code are preceded by a number of deadlines required by 
the Elections Code. These deadlines are for the most part, if not exclusively, determined by 
counting back from the date of the election. The Santa Cruz County Election Department 
candidate election deadlines for the November 2014 election are on the Santa Cruz County 
Elections Official’s Website:  http://www.votescount.com/nov14/admincal.htm The County 
Elections Department prepares a similar administrative calendar for each Elections Code 
prescribed Special and General Election. Below are eight Election Code deadlines. 
 

1. The first deadline in a General or Special Election is the publication of the notice of 
election stating the date and the polling hours of the election between 127 and 113 days 
before the election is held.. See Sections 12101 and 12111.    

2. The City Clerk is required to deliver a copy of the notice of election to the County 
Elections Department 125 days before the election. See Section 10509. 

3. Because resolutions must be noticed under the City Charter and approved at a regular 
scheduled Council meeting could occur as much as two weeks before the 88 days 
deadline. The publicly noticed meeting under the Brown Act where the Council adopts a 
resolution requesting consolidation would typically occur at least one week ahead of the 
meeting. (See Elections Code Section 10403) 

                                                 
1
 Al Alcala resigned on February 23, 199, and made his resignation effective immediately.  The meeting to appoint a 

successor occurred on March 23, 1999 but the Council could not reach a decision. An election was ordered April 13, 1999, 

and the election of Rafael Lopez occurred on August 10, 1999. 

http://www.votescount.com/nov14/admincal.htm


Page 3 of 3 

 
2/6/2014 4:51:36 PM 
Q:\COUNCIL\2014\021114\Timing of Election Staff Report.docx 

 

4. The Council must file a request to have the municipal election consolidated with the 
County election at least 88 days before the election is held.  See Elections Code 
Section 10403. 

5. Candidates then obtain and file their declarations of candidacy from 113 to 88 days 
before the election. Elections Code Sections 10510, 13307, 13311. Also 10220 through 
10230 and Government Code Section 36503. 

6. Candidates must file their candidates statements 88 days before the election 
Subdivision (a)(2) of Section 13307.  

7. Another example is that the order the names of potential candidates will appear on a 
ballot is determined by the Secretary of State selecting names 82 days before the 
election unless the Council provides for name rotation.  (See Elections Code Sections 
13113 and 13114). 

8. Process applications for special absentee voters’ ballots 60 days before the election.   
 
The City Clerk advertises the availability in local newspapers, posts on the City website and 
gives the public a period of time to learn of the availability of the seat.  Because of the statutory 
requirements, it would be impossible to consolidate the proposed vacancy election with a 
County election.    
 
It is beyond the scope of this memo but the State Fair Political Practices Commission has 
established deadlines which are also triggered by the election date.     
 
Because of the less than 90 day timeline, the City may eventually have to develop and the 
Council adopt a special election process by ordinance for vacancy elections.  This appears to 
be a concept of first impression as no other city in the state apparently conducts such 
elections. There are 478 cities in California.  All but 121 are general law cities.  All 357 general 
law cities allow their councils to appoint to a vacant seat.  Based on the information available 
to the undersigned, no California charter city except Vallejo prevents its council from 
appointing to vacant council seats.  Section 303 of the Vallejo City Charter provides that a mid-
term council vacancy shall be filled first by the unsuccessful candidate from the most recent 
general election, and only then by appointment. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The City would hire someone to conduct the election. The City Clerk’s office only has two 
employees and it takes several people to conduct an election.  The City cannot have a mail in 
election to fill the vacancy because the City Charter does not provide for mail in candidate 
elections. The estimates to conduct a single district election are $25,000 plus equipment, 
printing and travel. 



FUND FUND 
NO. NAME 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUMMARY OF DISBURSEMENTS 
WARRANT REGISTER DATED 2/11/2014 

AMOUNT ----

120 TRUST FUND 
130 EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 
150 GENERAL FUND 
1701NVESTMENTFUND 
202 REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 
205 COMMUNITY DEV BLOCK GRANT 
206 ENTERPRISE ZONE 
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 
250 LIBRARY FUND 
260 SPECIAL GRANTS 
309 PARKING GARAGE FUND 
342 CRESTVIEW AREA 
349 PUBLIC FACILITIES IMPACT FEES 
350 STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENT FUND 
353 IMPERVIOUS AREA IMPACT FEE FUND 
354 SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS 
710 SEWER SERVICE FUND 
720 WATER OPERATING FUND 
730 AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 
740 WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 
780 WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 
785 HEAL TH INSURANCE FUND 
787 HEAL TH INSURANCE FUND-POOL 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE CLAIMS 
ARE BUDGETED AND APPROPRIATED FOR: 

riif~/ 0 
EZ UIEL R. VEGA 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIRECTOR 

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1/29/2014 T02/11/2014 

PAYROLL INVOICES 

TOTAL OF ALL INVOICES 

2,273.88 
553, 110.39 
387,220.80 

159.00 
162.73 

6,750.30 
105.00 

33,302.1 8 
65,303.22 
41 ,955.05 

5,767.43 
7,320.00 

16,151 .93 
65,212.75 

5,000.00 
1,192.46 

205,725.28 
282,720.63 

58,181 .14 
98,189.08 
76,469.98 

3,047.56 
466,350.04 

TOTAL 2,381,670.83 

APPROVED FOR PAYMENT: 

CARLOS J. PALACIOS 
CITY MANAGER 

1,828,560.44 

553, 110.39 

2,381,670.83 

CITY COUNCIL 10.2a



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207068 

1 207082 

1 206373 

1 207196 

1 207229 

1 207094 

$259.00 
259.00 

$140.00 
140.00 

$3102.05 
73.04 
12.95 

139.95 
106.71 

11. 37 
112. 79 

21. 69 
705.12 

8. 67 
130.55 

20.04 
239.78 

11. 92 
19.52 
27.09 

109.41 
318.25 

48.77 
219.06 

31. 94 
197.22 

24.87 
10.84 
14.39 
32.53 
13.54 
73 .17 
60.16 

147.45 
69.90 
33.60 
55.76 

$1500.00 
1500.00 

$4952.32 
4952.32 

$133.16 
76.33 
28.42 
28.41 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/14 50873 
720-598-7559-00000 

02/11/14 52393 
150-622-7361-00000 

01/29/14 00316 
150-450-7533-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
150-450-7325-00000 
150-680-7541-00000 
730-560-7325-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-691-7533-00159 
150-220-7324-00000 
740-575-7559-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 
260-339-7559-04001 
150-250-7501-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-572-7559-00000 
150-691-7533-00158 
710-530-7324-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
740-570-7559-00024 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-523-7559-00000 
150-680-7321-00000 
150-510-7559-00000 
354-959-7821-00189 
260-339-7559-00924 
150-450-7501-00000 
150-410-7325-00000 
120-279-7559-00121 
720-597-7559-00000 
710-540-7559-00421 

0 A TOOL SHED RENTALS, INC. 
ROLLER RENTAL 

0 A-1 JANITORIAL SERVICE 
JANITORIAL SERVICES 

0 ACE HARDWARE 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 
12/31/13 STATEMENT 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 65994 0 AERO-ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 
150-690-7361-00000 

02/07/14 56602 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 53433 
740-570-7559-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 

SERVICES 

0 AFLAC 
H7935 INSURANCE 

0 AIRGAS USA, LLC 
SUPPLIES 
CYLINDER RENTAL 
CYLINER RENTAL 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

3 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 206960 

1 207210 

1 206393 

1 207093 

1 206961 

1 207187 

1 206962 

1 206963 

1 207078 

1 206386 

1 206994 

1 207101 

1 207134 

1 206964 

$1402.57 
1402.57 

$13585. 00 
5162.30 
5162.30 
2717.00 
543.40 

$1174.00 
1174.00 

$258.09 
258.09 

$630.95 
630.95 

$1000.00 
1000.00 

$64.10 
64.10 

$11. 70 
11. 70 

$1499.00 
749.50 
749.50 

$6745.50 
6745.50 

$149.43 
5.43 
5.69 

116.14 
22.17 

$16108.65 
5390.59 

10718. 06 

$68.88 
68.88 

$3949.94 
72.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

02/11/14 00460 
246-321-7361-00000 

02/11/14 66050 
720-913-7855-42110 
250-935-7855-42110 
150-901-7855-42110 
730-910-7855-42110 

02/04/14 62006 
780-293-7711-00000 

02/11/14 53383 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/11/14 00515 
150-450-7533-00000 

02/11/14 65664 
730-560-7361-00000 

02/11/14 00682 
720-596-7222-00000 

02/11/14 00682 
150-450-7222-00000 

02/11/14 52061 
710-540-7361-00422 
710-540-7361-00420 

01/30/14 00951 
205-383-8337-00000 

02/11/14 06458 
710-530-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 54290 
710-534-7361-00000 
710-534-7361-00000 

02/11/14 59377 
730-560-7516-00000 

02/11/14 00995 
740-575-7324-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

0 AIRTEC SERVICE,INC OUTSTANDING 
JAN-14 

0 ALL PHASE EXCAVATING AND CONTRUCTION CO.,INC. OUTSTANDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 146-13(CM} 
ST-13-07 FIBER OPTICS LIBRARY 
ST-13-07 FIBER OPTICS GENERAL 
PROJECT ST-13-07 FIBER OPTICS 

0 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. OUTSTANDING 
SPECL INS 500 CLEARWATER LN 

0 ALLIED PACKING & SUPPLY, INC OUTSTANDING 
GASKET MATERIAL 

0 ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC OUTSTANDING 
SCOTT NECK/TEMPLE STRAPS 

0 AMERICAN AVIATION PROFESSIONALS INC. OUTSTANDING 
DATA GATHERING 

0 AMERICAN MESSAGING OUTSTANDING 
SERVICE PAGERS 

0 AMERICAN MESSAGING OUTSTANDING 
PAGING SERVICE 

0 AMERIMARK DIRECT OUTSTANDING 
NATURE CTR SUPPLIES 
NATURE CTR SUPPLIES 

0 ANIMAS CONSTRUCTION OUTSTANDING 
REHABILITATION #CDBG8337 

0 APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
BRAS VALVE 
TUBE 

0 APPLIED MARINE SCIENCES INC 
RESOLUTION NO. 186-09(CM} 
RESOLUTION NO. 186-09(CM} 

0 ARAMARK 
UNIFORMS 

0 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES,INC 
LINEN SERVICE 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

4 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207125 

1 207184 

1 207161 

1 206959 

1 207163 

1 207164 

1 207189 

1 206965 

1 207123 

1 206967 

57.20 
89.80 
62.60 
18.62 

290.47 
338.37 
964.04 
331.12 
342.34 

82.00 
1056.81 

52.20 
105.55 

45.02 
41. 80 

$2000.66 
71. 61 

1315.36 
420.82 
192.87 

$37111. 20 
37111. 20 

$9137.50 
9137.50 

$15.72 
15.72 

$359.68 
359.68 

$359.68 
359.68 

$100.00 
100.00 

$1029.50 
47.00 

495.00 
487.50 

$55910.89 
55910.89 

$1651.95 
1651.95 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

150-410-7516-00000 
150-220-7327-00000 
150-620-7327-00000 
150-450-7327-00000 
720-598-7327-00000 
720-597-7327-00000 
740-570-7327-00000 
740-572-7361-00000 
150-523-7327-00000 
150-680-7327-00000 
710-530-7327-00000 
730-560-7516-00000 
720-596-7327-00000 
150-450-7504-00000 
246-321-7327-00000 

02/11/14 58325 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 65412 
730-560-7562-00000 

02/11/14 63185 
720-596-7351-00000 

02/11/14 00315 
150-409-7222-00000 

02/11/14 63800 
150-409-7222-00000 

02/11/14 63800 
150-409-7222-00000 

02/11/14 65698 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/11/14 01215 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 58070 
250-935-7803-42041 

02/11/14 01342 
250-935-7857-42043 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 
LINEN SERVICE 

0 ARATA EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
PARTS 
PARTS 
HOLDING VALVE 
PARTS 

0 ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC. 
FUEL 

0 ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA 
2014 DUES 

0 AT&T 
WHITE PAGE AD 

0 AT&T 
PD CLETS LINE 

0 AT&T 
CLETS LINE 

0 ATKINS, EVON 
TOILET REBATE 

0 AUTO CARE TOWING 
VEHICLE TOW 
TRUCK TOW 
TRUCK TOW 

0 AWE 
COMPUTERS 

0 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 
BOOKS 

INVOICE # 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

5 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 206968 

1 206969 

1 206382 

1 206966 

1 207070 

1 207072 

1 207098 

1 206970 

1 207091 

1 207065 

$190.00 
25.00 

110. 00 
55.00 

$1560.00 
1275.00 

285.00 

$675.79 
55.21 

132.93 
148.66 

5.78 
333. 21 

$454.40 
454.40 

$2776.70 
1645.70 
1131. 00 

$300.00 
300.00 

$140.00 
90.00 
25.00 
25.00 

$1808.52 
497.10 
15.40 

158.52 
18.31 

402.39 
49.69 
14.40 

479.50 
173.21 

$486.76 
486.76 

$324. 72 
46.91 

277.81 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

02/11/14 01410 
710-530-7324-00000 
740-572-7559-07831 
740-572-7559-07831 

02/11/14 01439 
309-525-7361-00000 
309-525-7361-00000 

01/29/14 01450 
260-339-7559-04001 
150-680-7541-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 

02/11/14 01304 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/11/14 51005 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-410-7323-00000 

02/11/14 51429 
150-692-7510-00163 

02/11/14 53989 
150-210-7319-00000 
785-290-7319-00000 
785-290-7319-00000 

02/11/14 01550 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 
250-935-7857-42043 

02/11/14 53113 
710-532-7324-00000 

02/11/14 50708 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

0 BAYSIDE OIL II INC 
ACCOUNT COWOl 
USED OIL FILTER RECYCLE 
REC USED OIL FILTERS 

0 BEWLEY'S CLEANING 
JANITORIAL SERVICES 
EXTRA CLEANING 

0 BIG CREEK LUMBER COMPANY 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 BME INC. 
REPAIR PARTS 

0 BODY BY HANK 
VEH REPAIR 
VEH MAINT 

0 BOLLINGER ASA INSURANCE 
INSURANCE RENEWAL 

INVOICE # 

0 BRENDT D. CARLSON, M.D., INC. 
LAB WORK 
FLU SHOTS 
FLU SHOTS 

0 BRODART CO. 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 
BOOKS 

0 BUCKLES-SMITH ELECTRIC 
PARTS 

0 BURTON'S FIRE APPARATUS, INC.· 
SUPPLIES 
VALVE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

6 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 206971 

1 11112360 

1 207139 

1 206972 

1 207120 

1 206973 

1 207124 

1 206974 

1 207175 

1 207154 

1 207064 

1 207112 

1 207126 

1 206975 

$607.44 
607.44 

$3292.34 
3292.34 

$5558.08 
5558.08 

$7000.00 
7000.00 

$267.00 
2 67. 00 

$165.00 
165.00 

$195.34 
97. 67 
97. 67 

$229.85 
229.85 

$5000.00 
5000.00 

$112. 00 
112. 00 

$40.50 
40.50 

$2270.40 
1783.12 
367.99 

60.75 
58.54 

$41.94 
41. 94 

$1428.37 
225.56 

48.14 
12.04 
60.76 

337.78 
744.09 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/14 01665 
150-230-7501-00000 

02/07/14 62407 
130-000-2050-00000 

0 BUSINESS FORMS UNLIMITED 
W-2 FORMS 

0 CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 59751 
710-540-7763-00052 

0 CAL-WEST LIGHTING & SIGNAL MAINTENANCE INC. 
130857, 131069, 131070, 131071 

02/11/14 01935 
720-596-7361-00000 

02/11/14 57741 
120-279-5895-00161 

02/11/14 02110 
150-692-7351-00163 

02/11/14 58112 
150-692-7510-00210 
150-691-7361-00158 

02/11/14 02260 
730-560-7702-00000 

02/11/14 64892 
353-953-7361-00000 

02/11/14 62692 
150-450-7359-00000 

02/11/14 50641 
150-691-7533-00159 

02/11/14 55520 
730-560-7533-00000 
150-409-7501-00000 
150-230-7501-00000 
150-250-7501-00000 

02/11/14 58367 
250-935-7857-42043 

02/11/14 02360 
740-572-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
720-596-7324-00000 
710-531-7559-00000 
740-572-7324-00000 

0 CALCON SYSTEMS, INC 
SYSTEM UPGRADE 

0 CALDERON, LORENA 
CALLAGHAN PARK 

0 CALIFORNIA PARKS & RECREATION 
VIVENZI MEMBERSHIP 

0 CALTRONICS BUSINESS SYSTEMS 
COPIER LEASE 
COPIER LEASE 

0 CARMEL MARINA CORP. 
TOILET RENTAL 

0 CARMEN GROUP, INC. 
PROFESSIONAL, TECHNICAL, AND/0 

0 CARO, EDUARDO 
EMT CERT/RECERT HSA 

0 CASSIDY'S PIZZA 
WINTER CAMP LUNCH 

0 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 
PRINTERS 
TONER 
TONER 
SWITCH 

0 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT 
BOOKS 

0 CENTRAL ELECTRIC 
STATEMENT 12/31/2013 
STATEMENT 12/31/2013 
STATEMENT 12/31/2013 
STATEMENT 12/31/2013 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

7 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207122 $187.05 
187.05 

1 207227 $121. 60 
121.60 

1 207185 $269.86 
269.86 

1 207076 $240.00 
240.00 

1 207211 $486.00 
486.00 

1 206390 $2997.56 
2997.56 

1 207182 $70.00 
70.00 

1 207157 $316.02 
316.02 

1 207159 $2577.33 
1250.69 
1218.15 

108.49 

1 207212 $381. 30 
381.30 

1 206976 $488.00 
2 67. 00 
221. 00 

1 206977 $2549.85 
102.29 
102.28 

51.14 
51.14 
51.15 
51.14 
50.99 
50.99 
50.99 

102.01 
1345.40 

540.33 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

02/11/14 58029 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/07 /14 55274 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 65533 
150-620-7322-00000 

02/11/14 52015 
150-160-7351-00000 

02/07 /14 02560 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/04/14 02650 
785-290-7319-00000 

02/11/14 65258 
150-620-7361-00000 

02/11/14 6294 9 
740-570-7324-00000 

02/11/14 63094 
710-541-7559-00000 
710-540-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

02/07/14 02861 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 02865 
120-279-5895-00161 
150-690-7770-00000 

02/11/14 02888 
710-541-7559-00000 
710-530-7559-00000 
150-160-7501-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
150-315-7501-00000 
150-250-7501-00000 
150-230-7501-00000 
150-315-7501-00000 
150-450-7501-00000 
150-250-7501-00000 
720-596-7357-00000 
150-692-7510-00210 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

0 CHAZ CUSTOM EMBROIDERY & DIGITIZING 
POLICE DECALS 

0 CINCINNATI LIFE INSURANCE CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 CIT 
COPIER CHARGES 

0 CITY CLERKS ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA 
CCAC DUES IRWIN ORTIZ 

0 CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
HEALTH DEPOSIT 

0 CLEAN BUILDING MAINTENANCE COMPANY 
JANITORIAL SERVICES 

0 CLEARBLU ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICE 

0 CLICKAWAY CORPORATION 
COMPUTER REPLACEMENT 
COMPUTER REPLACEMENT 
VIDEO CARD 

0 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 COMMUNITY ACTION BOARD 
REFUND DEPOSIT 
REFUND DEPOSIT 

0 COMPUCOM SYSTEMS, INC. 
UPS ACP BACKUP 
UPS ACP BACKUP 
UPS ACP BACKUP 
UPS ACP BACKUP 
UPS ACP BACKUP 
UPS ACP BACKUP 
UPSACP BACKUP 
UPSACP BACKUP 
UPSACP BACKUP 
UPSACP BACKUP 
TONER 
TONER 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

8 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 206978 

1 206979 

1 206992 

1 207213 

1 207130 

1 206980 

1 207233 

1 207106 

1 206981 

1 206376 

1 206982 

1 206983 

$27203. 00 
27203. 00 

$5186.00 
5186.00 

$735.03 
735.03 

$1234.89 
463.35 
141. 0 6 
446.31 
125.00 

59.17 

$140.00 
70.00 
70.00 

$349.29 
143.85 

47. 95 
66.77 
47.95 
42.77 

$3522 .13 
3522.13 

$11701. 77 
11701.77 

$119.35 
119. 35 

$200.00 
200.00 

$126. 31 
25.68 
13.02 

3.37 
5.91 

78.33 

$262.52 
262.52 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/14 03017 
150-409-7369-00000 

02/11/14 03020 
150-410-7765-00402 

02/11/14 05864 
150-419-7361-00000 

02/07/14 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 59083 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
CONTRIBUTION 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
PARK TICKET SURCHARGE 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
OPEN QUERY CHARGES 

0 COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
S.CARRILLO 
R.CASTEEL 
E.GIL 
O.LOPEZ 
M.ORTIZ CASTILLO 

0 CRIME SCENE CLEANERS INC 
DISPOSE CONTAMINANTS 
DISPOSE CONTAMINANTS 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 03084 0 CRUZIO/THE INTERNET STORE INC. 
150-690-7322-00000 
710-540-7361-00421 
150-250-7322-00000 
150-523-7222-00000 
150-417-7533-00000 

02/07/14 65812 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 55158 
150-315-7309-00000 

02/11/14 03118 
710-530-7559-00000 

01/29/14 66038 
150-275-7770-00000 

02/11/14 03220 
730-560-7325-00000 
730-560-7323-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 

02/11/14 03390 
150-315-7309-00000 

DSL FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
DSL FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
DSL FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
DSL FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
DSL FOR VARIOUS LOCATIONS 

0 CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 CSG CONSULTANTS, INC. 
CHANGE ORDER TERM EXTENDED TO 

0 D&G SANITATION 
TOILET RENTAL 

0 DANNA, RICKARD 
REFUND PETITION FEE 

0 DAVIS AUTO PARTS 
STATEMENT 1/25/14 
STATEMENT 1/25/14 
STATEMENT 1/25/14 
STATEMENT 1/25/14 
STATEMENT 1/25/14 

0 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 
HAZ MAPPING FEE 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

9 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207140 

1 206984 

1 207214 

1 206985 

1 207077 

1 207193 

1 207174 

1 207191 

1 207149 

1 206374 

1 207203 

1 207099 

1 206986 

1 207087 

1 207085 

$105.00 
105.00 

$649.00 
649.00 

$286.15 
286.15 

$747.76 
98.30 

64 9. 4 6 

$3974.82 
3819.12 

20.00 
135.70 

$3827.50 
3827.50 

$2104.50 
2104.50 

$435586.85 
435586.85 

$189.19 
189.19 

$4167.00 
4167.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$51.25 
51. 25 

$12039.00 
12039.00 

$600.00 
600.00 

$841.37 
136.67 

17.50 
100.74 
100.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
CHECK 
STATUS 

G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # INV VEND 

02/11/14 59801 
206-364-7307-00000 

02/11/14 03422 
150-409-7361-00000 

02/07/14 03017 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 03589 
150-691-7533-00166 
710-540-7559-00129 

02/11/14 52046 
150-523-7505-00000 
710-531-7361-00000 
740-575-7324-00000 

02/11/14 65765 
710-530-7361-00000 

02/11/14 64578 
710-541-7506-00000 

02/11/14 65748 
787-299-7319-00000 

02/11/14 62004 
710-541-7506-00000 

01/29/14 51334 
710-541-7369-00000 

02/11/14 66042 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/11/14 54022 
150-692-7770-00162 

02/11/14 04064 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/11/14 52935 
150-450-7533-00000 

02/11/14 52833 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
354-959-7327-00000 

0 DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT OUTSTANDING 
ENTERPRISE ZONE VOUCHERS 

0 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE OUTSTANDING 
FINGERPRINT APPS 

55719 DEVIN DERHAM-BURK OUTSTANDING 
E.SANTANA 

0 DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY OUTSTANDING 
SUPPLIES 
ART SUPPLIES 

0 DIXON & SONS TIRES INC. OUTSTANDING 
TIRES & FLAT REPAIRS 
TIRES & FLAT REPAIRS 
TIRES & FLAT REPAIRS 

0 ECOPLEXUS, INC. OUTSTANDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 153-ll(CM) 

0 EMD MILLIPORE CORPORATION OUTSTANDING 
REPAIR 

0 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SPECIALISTS, INC. OUTSTANDING 
HEALTH BENEFITS 

0 ENVIROLOGIX OUTSTANDING 
QUALITUBE KIT 

0 ENVIRONMENTAL LABORATORY ACCREDITATION FROG. OUTSTANDING 
RENEWAL FEES 

0 ESPINOZA, ISABEL OUTSTANDING 
WASHER REBATE 

0 ESPINOZA, MIGUEL A. OUTSTANDING 
REFUND 

0 EVERGREEN OIL INC OUTSTANDING 
HHWD LABPACK 

0 FAIL SAFE TESTING OUTSTANDING 
ANNUAL INSPECTION 

0 FASTENAL COMPANY 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SAFETY VEST 

OUTSTANDING 

10 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207086 

1 207074 

1 206987 

1 207168 

1 206988 

1 207132 

1 207206 

1 207116 

1 206989 

1 206388 

1 207167 

1 207095 

78.48 
9.33 
0.90 
9.33-

44 .51 
7.58 

10.55 
18.67 
12.40-
86. 73 
42.88 
38.13 

170.43 

$100.00 
100.00 

$157.72 
110.78 

46.94 

$1340.64 
1340.64 

$337.68 
130. 20 
207.48 

$942.23 
942.23 

$487.00 
487.00 

$486.00 
486.00 

$152.98 
152.98 

$228.38 
228.38 

$264.00 
106.93 
157.07 

$133.55 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-680-7533-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-523-7324-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 52833 

CAN LINERS 
SUPPLIES 
PART 
CREDIT 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
PARTS 
CREDIT 
SUPPLIES 
SHOP SUPPLIES 
PARTS 
PARTS 

0 UNISSUED 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 51877 0 FBI NATIONAL ACADEMY ASSOC., INC. 
150-409-7351-00000 

02/11/14 04170 
150-410-7212-00000 
710-541-7212-00000 

02/11/14 63960 
730-560-7361-00000 

02/11/14 04282 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-680-7361-00000 

02/11/14 59311 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/11/14 66045 
120-279-5895-00178 

02/11/14 56117 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/11/14 04707 
250-935-7857-42043 

02/03/14 53611 
150-315-7559-00000 

02/11/14 63912 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 5364 7 

MCCARTNEY DUES 

0 FEDEX 
2-538-81805-FRT 
FRT 

0 FIRST ALARM SECURITY & PATROL, INC. 
PATROL SERVICES FEB14 

0 FIRST ALARM, INC. 
FREEDOM BLVD SERVICE3 
MONITOR BURGLARY LEASE 

0 FLO-LINE TECHNOLOGY 
PUMP SEAL KITS 

0 FREEDOM HOUSE CHURCH 
VETS HALL RENTAL 

0 FREON FREE 
APPLI RECYCLING 

0 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 
BOOKS 

0 GARY'S PLASTIC PLACE 
VBL DEBORAH M/1-29-2014 

0 GCS ENVIRONMENTAL EQUIPMENT SERVICES, INC. 
SWITCH-BROOM WATER 
BROOM SWITCH 

0 GECRB/AMAZON 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

11 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207117 

1 207067 

1 207146 

1 207088 

1 207190 

1 207186 

1 206383 

1 206387 

1 207056 

1 207177 

1 207151 

1 206990 

1 206380 

133.55 

$20694.93 
5465.40 
5328.06 
4905.26 
4996.21 

$164.63 
164.63 

$54825.15 
118.45 

54087 .11 
619.59 

$190.00 
190.00 

$116. 75 
116. 75 

$726.23 
726.23 

$505.00 
505.00 

$1565.48 
70.33 

740.81 
638.24 
116 .10 

$683.19 
584.28 

98.91 

$144.55 
84.07 
60.48 

$8190.00 
8190.00 

$54.67 
54.67 

$403.57 
43.38 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

250-935-7857-42043 

02/11/14 56259 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 
710-532-7551-00000 

02/11/14 50811 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 61030 
720-597-7559-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 
720-597-7537-00000 

02/11/14 52938 
740-570-7091-00000 

02/11/14 65732 
260-339-7559-04001 

02/11/14 65597 
150-523-7505-00000 

01/29/14 05019 
150-230-7369-00000 

02/03/14 11442 
710-530-7324-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 

02/11/14 11442 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 65001 
150-691-7533-00166 
710-540-7559-00421 

02/11/14 62292 
710-540-7307-00000 

02/11/14 05209 
720-596-7559-00000 

01/29/14 51675 
150-450-7323-00000 

BOOKS 

0 GENERAL CHEMICAL PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS, LLC 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 
ALUMINUM SULFATE 
ALUM SULFATE 
ALUM SULFATE 

0 GOLDEN GATE TRUCK CENTER 
PARTS 

0 GOLDEN STATE FLOW MEASUREMENT INC. 
GEL CAPS 
UPGRADE 
METER PARTS 

0 GONZALEZ, ALEX 
BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 

0 GONZALEZ, ANGELICA 
SUPPLIES EXPENSE 

0 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY 
STEER AXLE TIRE 

0 GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 
CAFR AWARD PROGRAM 

0 GRAINGER 
MATERIALS 
TOOLS 
TOOLS 
TOOLS 

0 GRAINGER 
OUTDOOR STORAGE SHED 
MATERIALS 

0 GROCERY OUTLET 
CONTIGO AFTER SCHOOL SUPPLIES 
NATURE CENTER SUPPLIES 

0 GUTIERREZ CONSULTANTS, INC 
CONSULTING SERVICES FOR 

0 HACH COMPANY 
SUPPLIES 

0 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 
SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

12 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207110 

1 207216 

1 207217 

1 207192 

1 206993 

1 207148 

1 207153 

1 207173 

1 207083 

1 207118 

1 207194 

1 207183 

1 206995 

1 207097 

36.24 
95. 97 

113. 82 
114.16 

$10437.58 
10437.58 

$3985.00 
3985.00 

$2914.65 
2914.65 

$248.40 
248.40 

$2266.54 
2266.54 

$353.33 
353.33 

$4175.00 
4175.00 

$2283.75 
2283.75 

$39.98 
39.98 

$3881.28 
3748.29 

132. 99 

$1562.61 
508.82 

1053.79 

$832.84 
832.84 

$1199.66 
319.34-

1519. 00 

$1500.00 
1500.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-450-7325-00000 
150-450-7322-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 

02/11/14 55330 
150-410-7533-03225 

02/07/14 05813 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/07/14 05813 
130-000-2050-00000 

SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 
SUPPLIES 

0 HUBB SYSTEMS LLC 
MOBILE DVR'S 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303800 

0 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 
303884 PTS 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 65753 
150-450-7323-00000 

0 INTERNATIONAL EMERGENCY PRODUCTS 
SAFETY/EMERGENCY LIGHTS 

02/11/14 06009 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 61846 
730-560-7303-00040 

02/11/14 62594 
710-540-7361-00000 

02/11/14 64561 
150-680-7559-00000 

02/11/14 52417 
150-680-7541-00000 

02/11/14 56689 
150-450-7323-00000 
150-450-7323-00000 

02/11/14 65783 
309-521-7361-00000 
309-521-7361-00000 

02/11/14 65309 
150-450-7351-00000 

02/11/14 06570 
150-450-7533-00000 
150-450-7533-00000 

02/11/14 53868 
710-540-7361-00422 

0 INTERSTATE BATTERY CO 
BATTERIES 

0 JARVIS, FAY & DOPORTO, LLP 
LEGAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

0 JASON WOMACK COMPANY 
WORKPLACE PERFORMANCE SEMINAR 

0 JET MULCH, INC. 
ESTIMATE NO. 1442-0L DATED:ll/ 

0 KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY 
PAINT FRANICH RESTROOMS 

0 KME FIRE APPARATUS 
BUSHINGS AND PIN 
SEAL KIT 

0 KONE, INC. 
BEACH ST GARAGE WORK 
BEACH ST GARAGE ELEVATORS 

0 KRONOS 
SUPPORT SERVICES 

0 L N CURTIS & SONS 
CREDIT 
STRUCTURE HELMETS/VISORS 

0 LA GANGA ESPECIAL 
AD 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

13 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207133 

1 207200 

1 206996 

1 207115 

1 206997 

1 206998 

1 207147 

1 207128 

1 206999 

1 207105 

1 207107 

1 207000 

1 207119 

1 206378 

1 207181 

1 207162 

1 207201 

$100.00 
100.00 

$225.88 
225.88 

$580.98 
580.98 

$800.00 
800.00 

$570.00 
570.00 

$48.83 
48.83 

$100.00 
100.00 

$123.42 
123.42 

$677.08 
677.08 

$150.00 
150.00 

$175.00 
175.00 

$793.74 
793.74 

$155.98 
155.98 

$571. 50 
571. 50 

$7095.77 
7095.77 

$105.00 
105.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

02/11/14 59325 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/11/14 66037 
150-450-7323-00000 

02/11/14 06680 
710-530-7324-00000 

02/11/14 56099 
150-620-7322-00000 

02/11/14 06753 
150-409-7307-00000 

02/11/14 06860 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 61376 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/11/14 58964 
150-160-7361-00000 

02/11/14 06970 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 54830 
710-530-7091-00000 

02/11/14 55184 
150-280-7357-00000 

02/11/14 07130 
720-598-7559-00000 

02/11/14 57027 
120-279-7559-00121 

01/29/14 65885 
787-299-7320-00000 

02/11/14 65255 
150-410-7559-00000 

02/11/14 63385 
720-596-7091-00000 

02/11/14 66040 
720-596-7772-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

0 LASHLEY, VALERIE 
WASHER REBATE 

0 LEHR AUTO 
LENS REFRESH KIT 

0 LEIGHTON STONE C/O FLW/ INC. 
VALVES 

0 LIBRARY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
UPDATE 

0 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 
PROF SERVICES 

INVOICE # 

0 MAGGIORA BROS DRILLING CO. INC 
CAPACITOR 

0 MAGNER, ROBERT 
WASHER REBATE 

0 MARTIN & CHAPMAN CO. 
FILLER ELECTION MANUAL NOMINAT 

0 MARTY FRANICH FORD-LINCOLN-MERCURY 
STATEMENT 1/24/14 

0 MCGRATH, GENE 
BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 

0 MCQUADE,PATRICIA 
OUR TOWN NEWSLETTER 

0 MERCURY METALS, INC 
REPAIR BROOM TRUCK 

0 MERRIAM, SUZI 
TREADMILL BELT 

0 MES VISION 
CLAIMS 1/15/14 

0 MIWALL CORPORATION 
AMMUNITION 

0 MOLFINO, MICHAEL 
WATER DIST OPS FEE 

0 MONTEJO, CHRISTY & FERDINAND 
WASHER REBATE 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

14 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207104 

1 207001 

1 206381 

1 207202 

1 207215 

1 207152 

1 207079 

1 207180 

1 207142 

1 207158 

1 207218 

1 207002 

$431. 00 
284.00 

25.00 
122.00 

$517.89 
251. 70 
104.03-
370.22 

$16151.93 
15887.00 

264. 93 

$100.00 
100.00 

$20964.19 
20964 .19 

$243.93 
40.63 
40.66 
40.66 
40.66 
40.66 
40.66 

$128.33 
128.33 

$65.00 
65.00 

$3110. 00 
80.00 
80.00 

550.00 
1800.00 

600.00 

$4725.50 
4725.50 

$5723.00 
5723.00 

$159.17 
159.17 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

02/11/14 54802 
710-541-7315-07022 
710-541-7315-07021 
710-532-7315-00000 

02/11/14 07400 
730-560-7325-00000 
730-560-7325-00000 
730-560-7531-00000 

01/29/14 50159 
349-949-7855-42227 
349-949-7855-42226 

02/11/14 66041 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/07/14 05078 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 62579 
150-230-7212-00000 
710-530-7212-00000 
720-596-7212-00000 
730-560-7212-00000 
740-570-7212-00000 
150-620-7212-00000 

02/11/14 52102 
710-530-7559-00000 

02/11/14 65253 
150-220-7324-00000 

02/11/14 60342 
150-523-7562-00000 
730-560-7326-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7562-00000 
150-523-7562-00000 

02/11/14 63012 
710-532-7551-00000 

02/07/14 08107 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 08108 
150-220-7324-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

0 MONTEREY BAY ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC. 
TESTING 
TESTING 
TESTING 

0 MONUMENT LUMBER COMPANY 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 
CREDIT INV 184921 
PARTS/SUPPLIES 

0 MORENO ROOFING COMPANY 
PROPOSAL DATED DECEMBER 31, 20 
MATERIALS/LABOR 

0 MURPHY, RICHARD 
WASHER REBATE 

0 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 NEOPOST, INC. 
MAIN MACHINE MAINT 
MAIN MACHINE MAINT 
MAIN MACHINE MAINT 
MAIN MACHINE MAINT 
MAIN MACHINE MAINT 
MAIN MACHINE MAINT 

0 NEW PIG 
STAT-MAT 

0 NORTHWEST ENERGY EFFICIENCY COUNCIL 
CERTIFICATE RENEWAL 

0 NPM INC. 
MONTHLY TANK INSPECTION 
UST MONTHLY INSPECTION 
ANNUAL MONITORING TESTING 
TRIENNIAL TESTING 
ANNAUL AIR BOARD TESTING 

0 OLIN CORPORATION 
SODIUL CHLORITE 

0 OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL #3 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE 
SUPPLIES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

15 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207150 

1 207188 

1 207160 

1 207003 

1 207004 

1 207005 

1 207006 

1 207007 

1 207008 

1 207009 

1 207010 

1 207011 

1 207012 

1 207013 

$803.44 
22.13 
44.13 

104.15 
314.64 
184.15 
134.24 

$90.60 
90.60 

$945.17 
945.17 

$ 67. 73 
67.73 

$420.49 
420.49 

$31650.81 
31650.81 

$10.34 
10.34 

$4.70 
4.70 

$42.78 
42.78 

$10396.37 
7871.52 
2524.85 

$58.51 
58.51 

$94.57 
94.57 

$1096. 22 
1096.22 

$10900.42 
715 .17 

2065.49 
1654.52 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

02/11/14 62007 
150-523-7505-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 OSUNA AUTO ELECTRIC & SMALL ENGINE REPAIR 
CONNECTORS 

02/11/14 65691 
720-596-7361-00000 

02/11/14 63167 
710-541-7506-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-410-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-450-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
246-321-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
710-531-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
354-959-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-510-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-510-7211-00000 
150-510-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
710-530-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-510-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
740-572-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-622-7211-00000 
150-450-7211-00000 
150-510-7211-00000 

PARTS 
DELCO ALTERNATOR 
ALTERNATOR 
R&R MOTOR 
FORD STARTER 

0 OSUNA FARM SUPPLY SALES AND SERVICE 
SUPPLIES 

0 PACIFIC 4 
GLOVES 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
1052 E LAKE 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
370 AIRPORT 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
275 MAIN ST 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
52 ARISTA 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
1500 BRIDGE ST 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
PAJARO LN @GRN VLY RD 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
0909726970-9 1/14 
LOAN OBF REF 100109 1/14 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
W BEACH&LEE 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
HWY 129 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
500 2ND ST 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
2021 FREEDOM BLVD 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

16 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 PAGE 17 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 
CHECK 

BANI\ CHECI\ # CHECI\ AMT CHECI\ DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME STATUS 
WO # AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # INV VEND 

--------------------------------------------------------------
6218.20 150-410-7211-00000 2021 FREEDOM BLVD 

22.98 720-596-7211-00000 2021 FREEDOM BLVD 
21. 59 150-220-7211-00000 2021 FREEDOM BLVD 

202.47 710-531-7211-00000 2021 FREEDOM BLVD 

1 207014 $4.70 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
4.70 354-959-7211-00000 1300 BRIDGE ST 

1 207015 $20003.62 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
20003.62 710-532-7211-00000 401 PANABAI\ER 

1 207016 $2458.82 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
2458.82 309-525-7211-00000 260 RODRIGUEZ 

1 207017 $20 .11 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
20.11 150-680-7211-00000 201 PACIFICA 

1 207018 $11.74 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
11. 7 4 150-690-7211-00000 75 HOPE DR 

1 207019 $62.99 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
62.99 150-510-7211-00000 HARKIN SLU 

1 207020 $582.76 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
582.76 150-510-7211-00000 W BEACH AND MAIN 

1 207021 $2178.23 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
2178.23 710-531-7211-00000 PUFFIN RD 

1 207022 $303. 71 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
303. 71 150-510-7211-00000 26 W FRONT ST 

1 207023 $7143.37 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
7143.37 710-532-7211-00000 401 PANABAI\ER 

1 207024 $239.97 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
239.97 150-510-7211-00000 W5TH & MAIN 

1 207025 $84.56 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
84.56 150-417-7211-00000 130 RODRIGUEZ ST 

1 207026 $41.39 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
41. 39 710-530-7211-00000 500 CLEARWATER 

1 207027 $35794.34 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
35794.34 720-596-7211-00000 51 BURCHELL 

1 207028 $36231. 57 02/11/14 08230 0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC OUTSTANDING 
36231.57 720-596-7211-00000 51 BURCHELL 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207029 

1 207030 

1 207031 

1 207032 

1 207033 

1 207207 

1 207034 

1 207084 

1 207035 

1 207111 

1 207063 

1 207036 

$10.19 
10.19 

$2412.38 
2412.38 

$198.46 
198.46 

$132.02 
132.02 

$1280.81 
224.14 

1056.67 

$500.00 
500.00 

$3374.63 
3374.63 

$65212.75 
65212.75 

$75.00 
75.00 

$372. 83 
60.00 
25 .11 
43.40 
35.76 
28.54 

145.52 
34.50 

$603.98 
372.14 
231.84 

$639.47 
6.05 
6.05 
5.20 
3.03 
9.08 

68.62 
29.13 
14.90 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
730-561-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 

02/11/14 08230 
150-680-7211-00000 
354-959-7211-00000 

02/11/14 66046 
120-279-5895-00193 

02/11/14 08300 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
127 RIVERSIDE DR 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
GREEN VALLEY RD 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
1487 HIGHWAY 1 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
37 DAVIS AVE 

0 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 
26 W FRONT ST 
125 AVIATION WAY 

0 PACIFIC PLUG AND LINER 
CIVIC PLAZA RENTAL 

0 PACIFIC TRUCK PARTS 
PARTS 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 52529 0 PACIFIC UNDERGROUND CONSTRUCTION INC. 
350-950-7831-42071 

02/11/14 08322 
150-110-7232-00107 

02/11/14 55375 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-680-7541-00000 

02/11/14 50500 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-03180 

02/11/14 08340 
150-410-7325-00000 
150-690-7325-00000 
150-680-7541-00000 
150-620-7357-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-575-7324-00000 

PROJECT SD-13-0lQB 

0 PAJARO VALLEY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
ANNUAL AWARDS DINNER TICKET 

0 PAJARO VALLEY FABRICATION INC. 
REPAIR FIRE TRUCK 
CUT MATERIAL 
CUT MATERIAL 
CUT MATERIAL 
CUT MATERIAL 
MFG DRAIN 
MATERIAL 

0 PAJARO VALLEY IRRIGATION 
NATURE TRAILS 
TRAILS RESTORATION 

0 PAJARO VALLEY LOCK SHOP 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

18 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207080 

1 207037 

1 207096 

1 207231 

1 207137 

1 207038 

1 207199 

1 206375 

1 207039 

1 207204 

1 207109 

1 207144 

1 207138 

30.67 
466.74 

$36154.84 
23882.20 
12272. 64 

$631. 48 
224.60 
244.13 
162.75 

$70.10 
70.10 

$54.00 
54.00 

$375.00 
375.00 

$160.00 
160.00 

$94.41 
94.41 

$200.00 
200.00 

$1714.11 
1213.80 

500.31 

$874.08 
65.00 
65.00 

401.00 
45.00 

298.08 

$2495.50 
2495.50 

$4136.43 
3738.40 

291.19 
106.84 

$964. 85 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

150-690-7325-00000 
150-622-7361-00000 

02/11/14 52165 
260-336-7367-03226 
260-336-7367-03231 

02/11/14 08343 
740-570-7324-00000 
150-409-7357-00000 
150-409-7357-00000 

02/11/14 53813 
150-410-7533-00000 

02/07/14 59033 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 59615 
150-690-7361-00000 

02/11/14 08365 
150-680-7359-00000 

02/11/14 66034 
740-570-7324-00000 

01/29/14 66039 
150-275-7770-00000 

02/11/14 08559 
710-531-7361-00000 
710-531-7361-00000 

02/11/14 66043 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 
740-570-7361-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 

02/11/14 55259 
710-532-7551-00000 

02/11/14 60472 
740-575-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
740-575-7324-00000 

02/11/14 59675 

KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 
KEYS AND REPAIR PARTS 

0 PAJARO VALLEY PREVENTION & STUDENT 
RESOLUTION NO. 8-13 (CM) CASE 
RESOLUTION NO. 51-12 (CM) 

0 PAJARO VALLEY PRINTING 
DRIVERS VEHICLE INSPECTION REP 
VAC/SICK/OT FORMS 
BUS CARDS 

0 PAJARO VALLEY VETERINARY HOSPITAL 
K-9 MEDS 

0 PAL POLICE ACTIVITIES LEAGUE 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 PANTHER PROTECTIVE SERVICE 
SECURITY SERVICES 

0 PAPA 
ERNIE&ROCKY 

0 PENINSULA WELDING & MEDICAL SUPPLY, INC. 
PARTS/LABOR 

0 PEREZ, DAVID 
REFUND PETITION FEE 

0 PETERSON TRACTOR COMPANY 
BRIDGE ST SERVICE 
BRIDGE ST LOAD TESTING 

0 PKT WELDING & FABRICATION 
REPAIT BUSHING DRIVERS 
WELD HOOKS GARBAGE TRUCK 
REPAIR DAMAGED GATE PINE APTS 
RADIATOR REPAIR 
DEF TANK STAND 

0 POLYDYNE, INC 
POLYMER LOAD 

0 POWERPLAN 
SWEEPER REPAIR 
REPLACE FITTING 
PARTS/LABOR 

0 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

19 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207232 

1 207179 

1 206377 

1 206392 

1 207219 

1 207131 

1 11112357 

1 207040 

1 207041 

1 207208 

1 207135 

32.86 
25.24 

116.97 
31. 80 
24.65 
32.86 
25.24 
31. 80 
24.65 

107.76 
224.87 

23.75 
128.98 
133.42 

$569.80 
569.80 

$584.06 
584.06 

$22107.31 
22107.31 

$8084.38 
8084.38 

$2194.16 
2194.16 

$2998.86 
2998.86 

$238605.68 
238605.68 

$1547.00 
700.00 
140.00 
210.00 
350.00 
147.00 

$37.29 
37.29 

$260.00 
260.00 

$7320.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
730-560-7702-00000 
710-530-7324-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/07/14 62976 
130-000-2050-00000 

HELIUM 
SUPPLIES 
CYLINDER RENTAL 
HELIUM 
SUPPLIES 
HELIUM 
SUPPLIES 
HELIUM 
SUPPLIES 
ACETYLENE 
CYLINDER RENTAL 
CYLINDER RENTAL 
ACETYLENE 
CYLINDER RENTAL 

0 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES INC. 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 65134 0 PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING INC. 
720-596-7361-00000 

01/29/14 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

02/04/14 65844 
787-299-7318-00000 

02/07/14 08790 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 59200 
260-336-7533-03231 

02/07/14 08840 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 08898 
720-597-7559-00000 
150-410-7322-00000 
150-690-7322-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-600-7501-00000 

02/11/14 08900 
740-575-7361-00000 

02/11/14 66047 
120-279-5895-00159 

02/11/14 59578 

SIDEWALK OFFSET REPAIR 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS W/ENDING 1/16 & 1/23/14 

0 PREFERRED BENEFIT 
CLAIMS W/ENDING 1/30/14 

0 PROF FIRE FIGHTERS-WATSONVILLE 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 PROMO DIRECT 
PROMOTIONAL ITEMS 

0 PUBLIC EMP RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 QUADRANT SYSTEMS, INC 
SOFTWARE REPORT 
SOFTWARE REPORT 
SOFTWARE REPORT 
SOFTWARE REPORT 
CASH DRAWER INSERT 

0 QUALITY WATER ENTERPRISES 
BOTTLE WATER 

0 RAMIREZ, ELIDIA 
REFUND RAMSAY PARK 

0 RBF CONSULTING 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

20 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207178 

1 207042 

1 207172 

1 207166 

1 207225 

1 207092 

1 207176 

1 207071 

1 207061 

1 207171 

1 207226 

7320.00 

$37.45 
6.86 

30.59 

$19.95 
19.95 

$140.00 
140.00 

$137.50 
137.50 

$175.00 
175.00 

$1792.34 
38.68 
87.03 

153.06 
317.74 

48.35 
139.83 

19.92 
142.23 

64.75 
177.63 
162.73 

45.58 
45.58 
30.39 
30,39 

288.45 

$1500.00 
1500.00 

$136.00 
136.00 

$150.00 
150.00 

$715. 00 
715.00 

$450.00 
450.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

342-942-7307-02191 

02/11/14 65031 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 09100 
710-541-7361-06769 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-13 (CM) 

0 RDO EQUIPMENT CO. 
HOSE 
SUPPLIES 

0 REDSHIFT INTERNET SERVICES 
WEB HOSTING FOR CCLEAN.ORG 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 64437 
150-450-7222-00000 

0 REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L 
MONTHLY SERVICE 

02/11/14 63855 
150-210-7307-00000 

02/07/14 51096 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 53134 
150-691-7322-00160 
150-691-7357-00161 
150-315-7322-00000 
710-530-7322-00000 
150-688-7361-00000 
720-596-7357-00000 
150-620-7357-00000 
710-540-7361-00000 
150-230-7357-00000 
150-250-7322-00000 
202-367-7322-00000 
150-120-7322-00000 
150-160-7322-00000 
150-210-7322-00000 
150-130-7501-00000 
150-690-7322-00000 

02/11/14 64930 
740-570-7361-00000 

02/11/14 51118 
150-275-7770-00000 

02/11/14 50005 
740-570-7091-00000 

02/11/14 64404 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/07/14 51096 
130-000-2050-00000 

0 RENNE SLOAN HOLTZMAN SAKAI LLP 
PROF SERVICES 

51673 REQUA, DEBRA 
FL003841 C.JOHNSON 

0 RICOH USA, INC. 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 
COPIER CHARGES 

0 RIVAS, RODOLFO 
REPAIR ELECTRICAL RISER 

0 ROBERT J. WEBER, M.D. 
BUS LICENSE REFUND 

0 ROCHA, EDDIE 
BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 

0 ROLF'S AIRPORT AUTO BODY 
RHINO LINING 

62457 ROSA F. ROCHA 
FL024318 S.ROCHA 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

21 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 PAGE 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207220 

1 207100 

1 207043 

1 207044 

1 207066 

1 206379 

1 207045 

1 207165 

1 207221 

1 207228 

1 207136 

1 207046 

1 207062 

1 207081 

$9865.52 
9865.52 

$170.00 
170.00 

$90.00 
70.00 
20.00 

$220208.75 
185732.50 

23105.75 
11370.50 

$4922.00 
631. 00 
631. 00 

3660.00 

$424.74 
199.88 
224.86 

$599.14 
599.14 

$537.50 
217.50 
320.00 

$1196.95 
1196.95 

$2.00 
2.00 

$177.00 
177.00 

$32.30 
32.30 

$521.44 
521.44 

$1539.33 
712.73 
826.60 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
CHECK 
STATUS 

G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # INV VEND 

02/07/14 09490 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 54172 
740-570-7361-00000 

02/11/14 09487 
150-692-7351-00163 
150-692-7351-00210 

02/11/14 09725 
150-409-7369-00000 
150-419-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 

02/11/14 50736 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-450-7361-00000 
150-523-7562-00000 

01/29/14 62101 
150-409-7361-00000 
150-409-7361-00000 

02/11/14 09832 
150-280-7232-00000 

02/11/14 63827 
260-336-7533-03231 
150-210-7359-00000 

02/07/14 09882 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/07/14 55327 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 59591 
309-525-7361-00000 

02/11/14 09952 
740-570-7559-00024 

02/11/14 50329 
150-523-7562-00000 

02/11/14 52348 
720-596-7551-00000 
720-596-7551-00000 

0 S C COUNTY EMP CREDIT UNION OUTSTANDING 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 S. MARTINELLI & COMPANY OUTSTANDING 
SCALE SERVICE 

0 SANCRA OUTSTANDING 
MEMBERSHIP 
MEMBERSHIP 

0 SANTA CRUZ CONSOLIDATED EMERGENCY OUTSTANDING 
3RD QUARTER EOC/911 
3RD QUARTER EOC/911 
3RD QUARTER EOC/911 

0 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERV. OUTSTANDING 
HEALTH PERMITS 
HEALTH PERMITS 
HEALTH PERMIT FEES 

0 SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL OUTSTANDING 
POLICE CLERK I AD 
POLICE OFFICER AD 

0 SCHWAN INC OUTSTANDING 
JAN 14 & JAN 28 2014 

0 SECOND STREET CAFE OUTSTANDING 
SHOP COP DESSERTS 
INSURANCE TRAINING 

0 SEID LOCAL 521 OUTSTANDING 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 SEID LOCAL 521 COPE OUTSTANDING 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 SENTRY ALARM SYSTEMS OUTSTANDING 
INSPECTION/MONITORING 

0 SHERWIN WILLIAMS OUTSTANDING 
PAINT 

0 SHIELDS, HARPER & CO. OUTSTANDING 
REVERSE CARD READER 

0 SIERRA CHEMICAL CO OUTSTANDING 
CMSLC10000697 
CHLORINE 

22 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207198 

1 207075 

1 207108 

1 207047 

1 207048 

1 207103 

1 207222 

1 207156 

1 207143 

1 206371 

1 206372 

$693.62 
150.00 

97.50 
177.06 
160.78 
108.28 

$164.06 
164.06 

$100.00 
100.00 

$650.58 
650.58 

$342.50 
342.50 

$889.87 
23.42 
70.26 
4 6. 84 
46.84 
23.42 

117.10 
23.42 
23.42 
93.68 

117.10 
187.36 

70.26 
46.84 
0.09-

$307.08 
125.00 
182.08 

$1716.50 
1716.50 

$418.52 
418.52 

$927.00 
927.00 

$984.00 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/14 66033 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 
740-570-7324-00000 

0 SILKE COMMUNICATIONS 
LABOR TRUCK RADIO INSTALL 
LABOR TRUCK RADIO INSTALL 
LABOR PARTS 
LABOR TRUCK RADIO INSTALL 
LABOR TRUCK RADIO INSTALL 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 51930 
150-419-7559-00000 

0 SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABORATORIES, INC 
TESTS 

02/11/14 55224 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/11/14 10170 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 10175 
150-410-7361-00000 

02/11/14 54553 
150-220-7222-00000 
710-530-7222-00000 
710-531-7222-00000 
710-540-7222-00000 
710-541-7222-00000 
740-570-7222-00000 
740-571-7222-00000 
740-572-7222-00000 
740-575-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 
720-597-7222-00000 
720-598-7222-00000 
150-680-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 

02/07/14 10338 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 62855 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/11/14 60391 
150-409-7501-00000 

01/29/14 10327 
150-523-7562-00000 

01/29/14 10327 

0 SOLOMON. LAURENCE 
WASHER REBATE 

0 SPECIALTY TRUCK PARTS, INC 
STEERING GEAR REPAIR 

0 SPEED OF LIGHT TOWING, INC. 
TOW RECOVERY FEES 

0 SPRINT 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 
CELL SERVICE 

0 ST OF CA FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
P.JENNINGS 
C.LEONOR 

0 ST VINCENT DE PAUL 
MATTRESS RECYCLING 

0 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 
OFFICE SUPPLIES POLICE DEPT 

0 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
UNDERGROUND TANK FEE MSC 

0 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

PAGE 

INV VEND 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

23 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 PAGE 24 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 
CHECK 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME STATUS 
WO # AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # INV VEND 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
984.00 730-560-7562-00000 UNDERGROUND TANK FEE AIRPORT 

1 206384 $1592.00 01/30/14 10327 0 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION OUTSTANDING 
1592.00 150-523-7562-00000 DIESEL FUEL RETURN 

1 206385 $24102.00 01/30/14 10327 0 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION OUTSTANDING 
62. 36 150-160-7357-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
12.40 150-250-7501-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
44 .11 150-409-7357-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

731.00 150-409-7361-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
5.16 150-409-7501-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

286.26 150-410-7516-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
110.24 150-410-7533-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

57.41 150-410-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
18.36 150-417-7533-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
4 6. 21 150-419-7533-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
40.11 150-419-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

416.50 150-450-7351-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
24.14 150-450-7516-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

245.83 150-450-7533-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
22. 72 150-450-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

1298.12 150-523-7505-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
84.58 150-620-7322-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
84.58 150-620-7353-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
5.78 150-620-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

24.85 150-622-7353-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
33.67 150-626-7307-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
41.13 150-626-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
67.60 150-680-7533-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

892.50 150-680-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
69.30 150-688-7344-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

7.18 150-691-7343-00161 SALES AND USE TAC 
3.74 150-691-7511-00161 SALES AND USE TAC 

17.26 150-692-7510-00163 SALES AND USE TAC 
4.80 205-386-7855-02126 SALES AND USE TAC 

62.65 250-935-7857-12051 SALES AND USE TAC 
114 .11 250-935-7857-12052 SALES AND USE TAC 
136.42 250-935-7857-42043 SALES AND USE TAC 
127.91 250-935-7857-91225 SALES AND USE TAC 

1198.35 260-336-7533-03128 SALES AND USE TAC 
19.36 260-336-7533-03226 SALES AND USE TAC 

941. 5 7 260-336-7559-03128 SALES AND USE TAC 
167.52 260-339-7559-00924 SALES AND USE TAC 

6.10 354-958-7821-00190 SALES AND USE TAC 
6.75 354-959-7821-00188 SALES AND USE TAC 

221. 56 710-530-7324-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
101.83 710-530-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

85.35 710-531-7559-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 
53.87 710-532-7324-00000 SALES AND USE TAC 

9.05 710-540-7559-00129 SALES AND USE TAC 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207049 

1 207050 

1 207205 

1 206991 

1 206394 

1 207209 

1 207051 

427.93 
80.75 
51.73 
79.55 
26.52 
10.61 

3.66 
335.27 
255.00 
261.31 
611.15 

63.75 
0.64 

13. 91 
74.38 
2.62 

446.25 
465.05 
234.60 
471. 24 

12175.78 

$72. 00 
72. 00 

$1479.40 
740.20 
739.20 

$2523.75 
2523.75 

$459.73 
459.73 

$581.28 
28.78 
46.61 
20.45 

485.44 

$17000.00 
8500.00 
8500.00 

$432.77 
90.00 

186.47 
156.30 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 
G/L ACCT # 

710-540-7559-00422 
710-541-7506-00000 
720-596-7551-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 
720-597-7361-00000 
720-597-7537-00000 
720-597-7559-00000 
720-598-7559-00000 
730-560-7307-00000 
730-560-7323-00000 
730-560-7361-00000 
730-560-7504-00000 
730-560-7533-00000 
730-560-7562-00000 
730-561-7533-00000 
730-910-7803-70160 
740-570-7361-00000 
740-575-7324-00000 
740-912-7361-22361 
740-912-7813-22364 
730-560-7763-00000 

02/11/14 10551 
710-540-7361-00421 

02/11/14 10553 
150-692-7510-00210 
150-680-7559-00000 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
DESCRIPTION 

SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 
SALES AND USE TAC 

0 SUPERIOR ALARM COMPANY 
WETLANDS ALARM MONITORING 

0 SUPERIOR HYDRO-SEEDING, INC. 
FIELD REPAIR 
FIELD REPAIR 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 66044 
150-510-7533-00000 

0 T&T PAVEMENT MARKINGS & PRODUCTS 
POSTS,ANCHORS ETC 

02/11/14 05675 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/05/14 63011 
720-596-7212-00000 
150-692-7510-00162 
720-596-7212-00000 
720-598-7361-00000 

02/11/14 66048 
710-530-7559-00000 
720-596-7559-00000 

02/11/14 10771 
720-596-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 

0 THE HOSE SHOP INC. 
PARTS & SUPPLIES 

0 THE UPS STORE 
SHIPPING CHARGES 
SHIPPING CHARGES 
SHIPPING CHARGES 
SHIPPING CHARGES 

0 TIMMONS GROUP 
SOFTWARE SYSTEM 
SOFTWARE SYSTEM 

0 TINO'S PLUMBING, INC 
320 HARVEST DR MENS ROOM 
SERVICE 
SERVICE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

25 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207052 

1 207053 

1 207102 

1 207054 

1 207195 

1 207223 

1 207073 

1 207089 

1 207055 

1 207113 

1 207127 

1 207114 

$2287.21 
2287.21 

$2085.67 
135. 00 
181.43 

45.00 
9.00 

207.00 
45.00 

280.00 
85.24 
42.62 
89.24 

777.14 
189.00 

$123.89 
123.89 

$803.88 
803.88 

$159.00 
159.00 

$208.00 
208.00 

$139.81 
118 .16 

21. 65 

$226028.32 
13386.03 
53914.38 

7935.86 
42953.82 

107838.23 

$88.97 
88.97 

$100.00 
100.00 

$100.00 
100.00 

$418.14 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION 

02/11/14 10840 
150-523-7505-00000 

0 TOWNSEND AUTO PARTS 
PARTS & SUPPLIES 

INVOICE # 

02/11/14 10924 
150-220-7361-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
309-525-7361-00000 
246-321-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
720-596-7361-00000 
150-690-7361-00000 
150-220-7361-00000 
720-596-7361-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 
740-570-7559-00000 

0 TRI-COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION INC 
MAINT/SERVICE 

02/11/14 54433 
150-620-7559-00000 

02/11/14 11045 
720-598-7351-00000 

02/11/14 65857 
170-231-7302-00000 

02/07/14 11070 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 51557 
150-680-7533-00000 
150-680-7533-00000 

02/11/14 52965 
740-570-7742-00000 
740-570-7741-00000 
710-530-7742-00000 
710-530-7741-00000 
720-596-7742-00000 

02/11/14 11160 
150-410-7559-00000 

02/11/14 55581 
720-596-7771-00000 

02/11/14 58394 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/11/14 55799 

MAINT/SERVICE 
MAINT/SERVICE 
MAINT/SERVICE 
MAINT/SERVICE 
MAINT 
SERVICE 
PARKS REC/PAL 
PARKS REC/PAL 
MAINT SERVICE 
SERVICE 
MAINTENANCE SERVICE 

0 ULINE 
ENVELOPES 

0 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT 
ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 

0 UNION BANK 
BANKING SERVICES 

0 UNITED WAY OF SANTA CRUZ CO 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 UNIVERSAL SPECIALTIES INC. 
CARTRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
CARTRIDGE DRINKING FOUNTAIN 

0 US BANK 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 
REVENUE BONDS 

0 VALLEY FEED 
K-9 FOOD 

0 VANCE, CURTIS 
TOILET REBATE 

0 VASQUEZ, ENRIQUE S. 
WASHER REBATE 

0 VERIZON WIRELESS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

26 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 

BANK CHECK # CHECK AMT 
WO # AMOUNT 

1 207155 

1 207230 

1 207069 

1 207057 

1 207224 

1 207090 

1 207141 

1 207170 

1 207058 

1 207121 

1 207145 

1 207129 

1 207059 

1 11112359 

266.33 
92.82 
18.15 

3.43 
37.41 

$22423.80 
22423.80 

$2935.59 
2935.59 

$146.80 
146.80 

$197.65 
153.79 

43.86 

$4896. 00 
4896.00 

$86.80 
86.80 

$4579.20 
4579.20 

$144.00 
144.00 

$3540.00 
3540.00 

$405.83 
405.83 

$270.13 
270.13 

$100.00 
100.00 

$26.58 
26. 58 

$207610.06 
103815.92 

73719.16 
30074.98 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 01/29/14 - 02/11/14 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 
G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

720-597-7222-00000 
150-220-7222-00000 
720-598-7222-00000 
710-540-7222-00000 
720-596-7222-00000 

02/11/14 62757 
710-530-7303-00031 

02/07/14 58532 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 50950 
710-530-7091-00000 

02/11/14 11515 
150-523-7505-00000 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/07/14 11570 
130-000-2050-00000 

02/11/14 52993 
150-523-7505-00000 

02/11/14 59908 
710-540-7361-00421 

02/11/14 64384 
150-315-7770-00000 

02/11/14 11685 
720-596-7307-00000 

02/11/14 57907 
740-572-7361-00023 

02/11/14 60785 
740-572-7324-00000 

02/11/14 59006 
720-596-7772-00000 

02/11/14 11866 
150-419-7533-00000 

02/07/14 11700 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 
130-000-2050-00000 

DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 
DATA PLAN 

0 WACTOR & WICK LLP 
LEGAL SERVICES 

0 WAGEWORKS INC 
AF06989 

0 WAGONER, MICHAEL 
STEEL TOE SAFETY BOOTS 

0 WATSONVILLE CADILLAC BUICK GMC 
PARTS 
PARTS 

0 WATSONVILLE POLICE ASSOCIATION 
PAYROLL FOR - 020714 

0 WATSONVILLE UPHOLSTERY 
SEAT REPAIR 

0 WATSONVILLE WETLANDS WATCH 
CONDUCT SLOUGH TRAIL MAINTENAN 

0 WEBBER, KYLE 
FEE 

0 WEBER, HAYES AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
CONSULTING SERVICE 

0 WEST COAST RUBBER RECYCLING 
TIRE RECYCLING 

0 WESTERN BALER & CONVEYOR, INC. 
ELEMENT FILTER 

0 WIGHT, MYRNA L. 
WASHER REBATE 

0 WILD ROSE FRAMING AND ART SUPPLY 
SUPPLIES 

0 WIRE TRANSFER-IRS 
FEDERAL 
SOCIAL SECURITY 
MEDICARE 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

INV VEND 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

27 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 23 OCT 12 09:20 RUN: THURSDAY FEB062014 12:11 PAGE 29 

FUND TOTALS 
------

FUND FUND NAME ISSUED TOTAL VOIDED/REISSUED TOTAL 
----- ------------------------------ --------------- -------------------
120 TRUST FUND 2,273.88 0.00 
130 EMPLOYEE CASH DEDUCTIONS FUND 553,110.39 0.00 
150 GENERAL FUND 387,220.80 0.00 
170 INVESTMENT FUND 159.00 0.00 
202 REDEVELOPMENT OBLIG RETIREMENT 162.73 0.00 
205 COMMUNITY DEV BLOCK GRANT 6,750.30 0.00 
206 ENTERPRIZE ZONE 105.00 0.00 
246 CIVIC CENTER COMMON AREA 33,302.18 0.00 
250 LIBRARY FUND 65,303.22 0.00 
2 60 SPECIAL GRANTS 41,955.05 0.00 
309 PARKING GARAGE FUND 5,767.43 0.00 
342 CRESTVIEW AREA 7,320.00 0.00 
349 PUBLIC FACILITIES IMPACT FEES 16,151.93 0.00 
350 STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENT FUND 65,212.75 o.oo 
353 IMPERVIOUS AREA IMPACT FEE FUN 5,000.00 0.00 
354 SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS 1,192.46 0.00 
710 SEWER SERVICE FUND 205,725.28 o.oo 
720 WATER OPERATING FUND 282,720.63 0.00 
730 AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND 58,181.14 o.oo 
740 WASTE DISPOSAL FUND 98,189.08 0.00 
780 WORKERS COMP/LIABILITY FUND 76,469.98 o.oo 
785 HEALTH INSURANCE FUND 3,047.56 0.00 
787 HEALTH INSURANCE FUND - POOL 466,350.04 0.00 

================ ================ 
TOTAL - 2,381,670.83 0.00 



I
·./. 
·" REPORT: APEDIT 

I 
Batch # 1837 

Account-# 

130-000-2050-00000 

GENERATED: 12 AUG 13 07: 53 

Account Name 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
GL Offsetting Entries 

Expenditure Summary 

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS PAYABLE 

RUN,: THURSDAY FEB062014, 11:40 PAGE 12 

Amount Acct Mth Date Acct Mth Total 

$553, 110. 39 2014/02 02/07/14 $553, 110.39 

~ 



INFORMATION ITEMS 
February 11, 2014

1.0 MINUTES 

--Planning Commission 
 January 21, 2014 

--Parks & Recreation Commission 
  January 9, 2014 

--Minor Land Division Committee 
  April 15, 2013 

2.0 PROCLAMATIONS 

--Officer Skip Prigge 
  January 25, 2014 

--Ed Banks 
  2013 Man of the Year 
  January 25, 2014 

--Nevenka Radich 
  2013 Woman of the Year 
  January 25, 2014 

--Clint and Karen Miller 
  Lifetime Achievement 
  January 25, 2014 

--Monterey Bay Youth Outdoor Day 
  2013 Event of the Year 
  January 25, 2014 

--Pajaro Valley Shelter Services 
  2013 Organization of the Year 
  January 25, 2014 

--RV’s Computers, Inc. 
  2013 Business of the Year 
  January 25, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL 10.2b



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

1 

 M I N U T E S 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4th FLOOR, WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
  
Tuesday, January 21, 2014 6:00 P.M. 
 
In accordance with City policy, all Planning Commission meetings are recorded on audio and videotapes 
in their entirety, and the tapes are available for review in the Community Development Department 
(CDD). These minutes are a brief summary of action taken. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL OF COMMISSIONERS   
 

Present were Commissioners Rick Danna, Mireya Gomez-Contreras (arrived at 6:16 
p.m.), Aurelio Gonzalez, Dobie Jenkins, Jenny Sarmiento, Vice-Chair Marty Corley and 
Chair Pedro Castillo.   
 
Staff members present were Principal Planner Keith Boyle, Senior Planner Suzi 
Merriam, Police Lieutenant David McCartney, Recording Secretary Deborah Muniz and 
City Interpreter Sofia Vazquez-Quintero.  
 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Commissioner Danna led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3.0 PETITIONS AND ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
  
 From the Public: 
 

Rita Uribe stated she is a first grade teacher at Ann Soldo School.  She represents the 
school staff and they are all unanimously against the proposed cell tower at Franich 
Park. 

 
 Commissioner Castillo asked staff if AT&T withdrew their project. 
 
 Principal Planner Boyle replied AT&T is looking at other alternatives and has not formally 

withdrawn the project. 
 
 Jose Camacho stated he resides in Vista Montana and is against the cell tower. 
 
 Carmen Luna stated she resides in Vista Montana and is against the cell tower.  She is 

concerned with safety issues and the potential decrease in property values. 
 
 Veronica Mendoza, president of Ann Soldo School Site Council, said she lives in the 

community and against the cell tower. 
  
 Yolanda Melgoza thanked Commissioners Corley and Castillo for attending the 

community meeting.  She was disappointed with the community meeting and is 
concerned about property values. 

 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

2 

 Imelda Hernandez stated her children attend Ann Soldo School but she resides near the 
proposed cell tower at Freedom Boulevard.  She is against both cell tower projects. 

 
 Pat Orozco stated he is Tribal Chairman of the Ohlone Indian Council.  He supports the 

speakers’ concerns and comments regarding the cell towers. 
 

Chairperson Castillo announced Commissioner Gomez-Contreras was present. 
 
 From the Commission: 
 
 Commissioner Sarmiento stated a Prevention Partners meeting will be held on January 

22 at 5:00 p.m. in the Community Room of the Civic Plaza.  This is to facilitate a   
town hall meeting on the impact of alcohol to businesses, youth and the community.  
She invited the public to attend. 

 
 Commissioner Danna stated he is not in favor of the Franich Park cell tower and does 

not approve of the design. He thanked and congratulated the three groups involved in 
collecting 11,000 signatures for the three petitions that were circulated throughout the 
City. 

 
 Commissioner Corley stated he attended both of AT&T’s community meetings on the 

proposed cell towers.  He expressed his disappointment with AT&T regarding the 
Franich Park community meeting.  It was disorganized and an interpreter was not 
provided.  The community meeting regarding the cell tower on Freedom Boulevard was 
better organized but AT&T has a long way to go.  He requested extending the 500 foot 
coverage to 1,000 feet for noticing of public hearings. 

 
 Mr. Boyle replied that 1,000 feet is above and beyond what the Watsonville Municipal 

Code requires.    The Mayor would have to put it on the agenda and Council would have 
to decide. The 1,000 feet coverage would be a significant cost for the City. 

 
 Commissioner Castillo announced the 2014 Planning Commissioner Academy 

sponsored by the League of California Cities will be held in San Francisco at the Marriott 
from March 26 to March 28.  The cost of registration for the entire conference is $525 
and $275 for one day.  He asked staff to check on available funding. 

 
 Mr. Boyle replied that staff will check the budget and get back to the Commission at the 

next meeting. 
 
 From the Public:  (Chair Castillo reopened Oral Communications) 
 
 Marilyn Garrett apologized for being late but claimed the elevators in the building were 

not working properly.  She commended the Commissioners that attended the community 
meeting at Ann Soldo School regarding the Franich Park proposed cell tower.  She 
recommended the Commission to vote against the project.  She spoke about the 
physical effects to the environment from cell tower radiation and provided a handout for 
the Commission on the subject. 

 
 Chair Castillo closed Oral Communications 
 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA   

 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

3 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES FOR THE DECEMBER 3, 2013 REGULAR 
MEETING 

 
 MOTION: It was moved by Commissioner Corley, seconded by Commissioner 

Sarmiento, and carried by the following vote to approve the Consent Agenda: 
 

AYES:      COMMISSIONERS:         Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Jenkins,  
                                                          Sarmiento, Castillo    

 NOES:        COMMISSIONERS:       None   
ABSENT:    COMMISSIONERS:       None 

 ABSTAIN:   COMMISSIONERS:      Gonzalez 
   
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS  

  

5.1 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (PP2013-288), TO ALLOW THE INSTALLATION OF A 
499 GALLON RETAIL PROPANE TANK AT AN EXISTING GAS STATION, THAT 
HAS A RESIDENTIAL ZONING DESIGNATION, AT 1 GREEN VALLEY ROAD (APN: 
014-081-18), FILED BY AMERIGAS PROPANE, APPLICANT. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Principal Planner Keith Boyle.  The Department has 
been working with the applicant for about a year to address all the issues.  The 
Fire Code required the propane tank be mounted vertical and a maximum size of 
499 gallons, based on separation requirements. 
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked how many propane tanks Amerigas has within 
the City.  He is concerned with the height and the visual appearance. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied he does not know how many tanks exist.  The tank cannot be 
mounted horizontal because of vehicle circulation and there are not a lot of 
options. 
 
Commissioner Danna asked if this project would still have come before the 
Commission if it was in a commercial zoned district. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied no it would not; however, it is because it is in a residential 
district.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if this type of tank is located at other service 
stations. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied yes. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked what the potential hazards to the neighborhood 
are. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated this is a much smaller tank than the normal size which is 2,500 
to 5,000 gallons.  It is consistent with the Code requirements. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

4 

Lazaro Olivares, applicant, stated the property was abandoned for three years 
before he opened his business there and it is a great location.  He has 40 years 
of experience.  Many of his customers go to Pajaro to buy their propane.   . 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if training is required on the propane tank. 
 
Mr. Olivares replied Amerigas provides training for the employees. 

 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked what safety measures will be taken to prevent a 
leak or accident. 
 
Mr. Olivares replied that the State requires daily logs for the propane tank and 
gas pumps. 
 
Commissioner Castillo asked if a customer’s propane tank is filled by an 
employee. 
 
Mr. Olivares replied yes.   
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked Mr. Olivares if he will be able to fill different types 
of propane tank containers and has he ever owned a gas station in the past. 
 
Mr. Olivares replied yes he will be able to fill a variety of tanks and he has not 
owned a gas station before. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if he is buying or leasing the propane tank and will 
he be selling empty tanks. 
 
Mr. Olivares replied he is leasing the tank and will be selling empty tanks. 
 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing 
 
Jonathan Brown stated he lives on Carey Avenue near the business and has 
several concerns regarding the propane tank.  Many children walk by all day long 
and there is a transit bus stop in front.  If there was a potential spill, Green Valley 
Road runs down hill and is located near the slough. The business already sells 
prefilled propane tanks. The gas tanks and gas pumps are not very far apart from 
each other and concerned about the impact to the residents.  He asked the 
Commission to consider his concerns. 
 
Hearing no further public comments, Chairperson Castillo closed the Public 
Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 

 
Commissioner Corley asked is there is a distance requirement between propane 
tanks and gas pumps. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied 25 feet is the requirement and the project has a 34 foot 
separation. 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

5 

Commissioner Danna stated he is concerned of the proximity of the tank to the 
residences. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied the tank is very small compared to the regular size tank.  Safety 
issues can be avoided with the proper training. 
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked if the tank will need to be refilled often. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied yes. 

 
e) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Danna, seconded by Commissioner Jenkins, and 
carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving Application 
(PP2013-288) for a Variance and Environmental Review:  

 
AYES:         COMMISSIONERS:    Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez, 
                                                        Jenkins, Sarmiento, Castillo 
NOES:         COMMISSIONERS:     None 
ABSENT:     COMMISSIONERS:    None 

 
5.2 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT AND ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (PP2013-293), TO ALLOW THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUTO REPAIR AND DIAGNOSTICS BUSINESS, AT 469 
UNION STREET (APN: 017-022-35), FILED BY FABIO NAVARRO, APPLICANT. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Principal Planner Keith Boyle. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if the applicant will be selling cars. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied no. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if this is currently a tire business. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied it is only an auto repair business. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked if there are two auto repair businesses in the 
same location. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied there is only one auto repair at this location and there is an auto 
body shop across the street. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Fabio Navarro, applicant, stated he wants to open an auto repair shop. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if he has owned a business before. 
 
Mr. Navarro replied he has owned his business in Pajaro for three years but this 
is his first business in Watsonville. 

 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

6 

Commissioner Jenkins asked is there a public right of way on the property. 
 
Mr. Boyle replied it is a private lot. 
 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Carlos C. stated he is a contractor and owns several trucks which always need 
maintenance.  The repair shop is located near his business which will be very 
convenient.  He supports the project. 
 
Jose Camacho stated he knows Mr. Navarro.  He was his student advisor in 
school.  He commended Mr. Navarro on his accomplishments. 
 
Augustine Rocha stated he has known Mr. Navarro for five years and he is a 
good person. He considers him to be the best mechanic and other mechanics 
call him for advice. 
 
Hearing no further public comments, Chairperson Castillo closed the Public 
Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 

 
Commissioner Gonzalez stated this business is good for the downtown area 
because you can shop while your vehicle is being serviced.   He wished Mr. 
Navarro great success. 

 
e) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Gonzalez, seconded by Commissioner Jenkins, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving Application 
(PP2013-293) for a Special Use Permit and Environmental Review:  

 
AYES:        COMMISSIONERS:     Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez, 
             Jenkins, Sarmiento, Castillo 
NOES:        COMMISSIONERS:      None 
ABSENT:    COMMISSIONERS:     None 

 
5.3 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT AND ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (PP2013-289), TO ALLOW THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUTO REPOSSESSION AND STORAGE BUSINESS, AT 
130 LEE ROAD (APN:  018-392-03), FILED BY SIMONE BALKENHOL, FOR ROAD 
RUNNER AUTO RECOVERY, APPLICANT. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Principal Planner Keith Boyle. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins stated the previous tenant had parking issues with the 
diesel business.  Is the applicant aware of this? 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

7 

Mr. Boyle stated there are several repair shops in this area.  Part of the 
applicant’s lease agreement includes 5 dedicated parking spaces plus the interior 
for storage of vehicles.   He feels this should be sufficient for the applicant’s 
operation. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Simone Balkenhol, applicant, thanked the Commission for taking the time to 
review her application.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if she was aware of the diesel operations and how 
busy they are. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol replied she does not intend to store any vehicles outside of the 
secured area as designated. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked what the volume of business is. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol replied she anticipates 20-25 vehicles can fit in the warehouse.  
She does not plan to store any vehicles outside. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if she has operated this type of business before. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol replied no; however, she and her partner have acquired the 
necessary professional licenses. 
 
Commissioner Castillo asked if the repossessions will take place in other 
counties besides Santa Cruz. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol replied she is licensed to do business in California so she is able 
to do repossessions in other counties. 
 
Commissioner Danna asked if she has a crew that goes out and repossess the 
vehicles and what is the average length of time a vehicle is stored before it is 
released from the bank back to the owner. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol stated there are several options for releasing a vehicle and she 
explained each one. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if she is interested in the auto auction business. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol said no, but it appears intriguing. 
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked what the security risks are and will this be a 
burden for the Police Department. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol stated her safety and the public’s safety is very important to her.  It 
is a good location and there is a fire sprinkler system.  The vehicle owner must 
settle with the bank or lender before they are allowed to pick up their vehicle. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if security cameras will be installed and asked for 
comments from the Police Department. 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2014\01-21-14\Minutes 012114.doc 

8 

Ms. Balkenhol replied security cameras will be installed. 
 
Police Lieutenant David McCartney stated at this time the Police Department 
does not expect this type of business to cause any hardship to Police resources 
or impact on calls for service. He asked Ms. Balkenhol for the hours of operation; 
is she required to show up after hours and does the building have a security 
alarm? 
 
Ms. Balkenhol replied the office hours will be 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  There is no 
requirement to show up after hours; however, if the debtor requests to pick up 
their vehicle after hours this has to be arranged through the bank.  The building is 
alarmed. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked what motivated her to enter into this type of 
business. 
 
Ms. Balkenhol replied she and her partner have known each other for 15 years 
and her partner has some previous experience.  She wanted to own a business 
in the Santa Cruz County and one that would not be out sourced. 
 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Patrick Orozco stated he owns property that is located near the project site and 
some of the buildings on that site are over Indian burial sites.  He is not opposed 
to the project but requests no digging.   
 
Hearing no further public comments, Chairperson closed the Public Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 
 
 None. 

 
e) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Sarmiento, seconded by Commissioner Corley, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving Application 
(PP2013-289) for a Special Use Permit and Environmental Review:  

 
AYES:        COMMISSIONERS:   Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez, 
           Jenkins, Sarmiento, Castillo 
NOES:        COMMISSIONERS:   None    
ABSENT:   COMMISSIONERS:    None 

 

6.0 REPORT OF SECRETARY 
 

Acting Secretary Keith Boyle stated 2014 will be a busy year for the Community 
Development Department.  There are several projects moving forward including a draft 
Climate Action Plan.  The proposed cell tower for Freedom Boulevard will be on the 
February meeting agenda.   
 





 

 3 

 Minutes     
 CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
      

 Old City Council Chambers 
City Hall, 250 Main Street, Watsonville 

 
January 9, 2014       6:30 P.M. 

===================================================================== 

1.0    ROLL CALL                  
 

Commissioners:   DeHart, Garcia, Rodriguez, Sauer  
Staff:   Parks and Community Services Director Ana Espinoza 
   Assistant Director Brad Blachly 
   Recreation Coordinator Israel Tirado 
   Administrative Assistant I Desiree Moya   

      

2.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a) Oral Communications from Commissioners & Members of the Public 
 

No oral communications.  

                                                          
b)      Correspondence Addressed/Referred to Commission 

 

 
3.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

3.1 Motion to Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of   
December 5, 2013 
 
Commissioner DeHart moved to approve the December 5, 2013 
minutes.  

 Commissioner Rodriguez second that motion 
 
Chair Garcia took a vote: 

Ayes:  DeHart, Garcia, Rodriguez, Sauer 
Noes:  None 
Abstains: None 
Absent:  Hurtado-Aldana, Lopez, Orozco 

 
The motion passed. 

 
  

4.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 
 
 
 
 



 

 2 

6.0 PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
 

6.1 Oral Report on 2013 Holiday in the Plaza by Recreation Supervisor 
Israel Tirado 
 
Recreation Supervisor Israel Tirado provided an overview on the 2013 
Holiday in the Plaza and discussed the various activities that were 
provided to the community. There was 2726 meals that were collected 
during this event that benefited Second Harvest Food Bank, an estimated 
3000 people attended this event. This event was possible by generous 
sponsors.    
 

6.2 Oral Report on 2013 Hip Hop for Hope by Recreation Supervisor 
Israel Tirado 
 
Recreation Supervisor Israel Tirado provided an overview on the 2013 Hip 
Hop for Hope event a collaboration with Build- A- Burg’s music company. 
This event included an annual toy and food drive which benefits the 
Second Harvest Food Bank and Toys for Tots. The event helped collect 
118 toys and 225 pounds of food and cash donations which equaled to 
2728 meals.  
 

6.3 Update on Establishment of Non-Profit for the Department by 
Commissioner Orozco 
 
Director Ana Espinoza gave an update on the establishment of the Non-
Profit. The board met with the Grunsky Law firm, which serve as the 
incorporator of the non-profit. This meeting established the board and the 
board took actions needed to move the organization forward which also 
included adopting the bylaws. Pending is review of the two tax exempt 
applications by the attorney. The board is working on establishing a 
website along with a brochure so it can be part of the final application to 
the Federal and State agencies. The Friends of Watsonville Parks and 
Community Services has approved appointment of Assistant Director Brad 
Blachly to their board. Commissioner DeHart had questions regarding the 
non-profit group named Recreation Advocates and how they assist our 
department. Director Espinoza provided clarification.  

 
 

7.0 NEW BUSINESS  
   7.1   Nomination and Election of Parks and Recreation Commission    

                   Chairperson  
 

The Commission carried over this item to the March meeting.  
 

   7.2      Nomination and Election of Parks and Recreation Commission Vice- 
              Chairperson 

 
The Commission carried over this item to the March meeting.  
 



 

 3 

7.3       Planning Session on Department Operational and Facility Needs 
 a)  Presentation by Director Espinoza 
 

Director Espinoza proposed a draft document that outlined the 
Departments needs and wish list. This included facility and park 
improvements, equipment needs, vehicles, and program 
expansions and staffing needs for the Contigo program and Get 
Out Get Fit Camp.   

   
b)        Commission Questions & Input (No Action Required) 
 

Commissioner Dehart expressed that the maintenance of facilities 
should be a top priority. Commissioner Garcia suggested that staff 
relate the operational and facility needs to the Park Master Plan 
goals. Commissioner Sauer suggested that newer vehicles also be 
a priority since participants are transported.   

 
a) Public Input   
 

None 
 

8.0   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None             

 
 

9.0  REPORTS 
9.1 Director’s Report  

 
Director Espinoza gave a report on the Guitars Not Guns for graduation 
and thanked Commissioners Rodriguez for his participation assisting 
youth in this program. A report was also provided on the Contigo Program, 
and how our local schools have requested additional presentations on 
gang prevention and tips on how parents can support their children to 
achieve academic success. 
  

10.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The next Commission meeting will be held on February 6, 2014. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS (Bolded Items included in current packet)  

3.1    Minutes of the December 5, 2013 Meeting    
7.3    Department Operational and Facility Needs 
9.1    Department Flyers 
       



  ADOPTED  MINUTES 

P:\MLDPAKET\mldpkt-13\Minutes 041513.doc      Page 1 of 3 

 

          MINUTES 
MINOR LAND DIVISION COMMITTEE 

OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 

 
Monday, April 15, 2013 CITY HALL – 250 MAIN STREET 
3:35 P.M.  FORMER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

1.0 ROLL CALL  

 MEMBERS/ALTERNATES PRESENT:  

 Assistant City Manager/Committee Chairperson Marcela Tavantzis, Principal Planner/ 
Committee Secretary, Keith Boyle, Assistant Public Works and Utilities Director Maria 
Esther Rodriguez and Fire Marshal Rob Ryan.  

Secretary Tavantzis announced Building Official Richard Hicks had an excused 
absence. 

 STAFF PRESENT: 

 Senior Engineering Associate Tom Sharp and Recording Secretary Deborah Muniz. 

2.0 MINUTES 

2.1 MOTION TO FILE AND ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 16, 2012 REGULAR     
MEETING. 

A motion was made by Member Boyle, seconded by Member Ryan and carried by voice 
vote. 

3.0 PUBLIC HEARING 
 
3.1 APPLICATION (PP2013-14) TO CREATE 4 LOTS RANGING IN SIZE FROM 2.04 

ACRES TO 3.36 ACRES AND A 12 ACRE REMAINDER LOT IN THE MANABE OW 
BUSINESS PARK INCLUDING A DESIGN REVIEW TO ACCOMMODATE 4 FUTURE 
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL BUILDINGS TOTALING NO MORE THAN 130,000 SQUARE 
FEET AT 102 LEE ROAD (APNS: 018-711-02, 018-392-01), FILED BY JENNIFER 
MOORE/DEVCON CONSTRUCTION, APPLICANT ON BEHALF OF THE OW FAMILY 
TRUST, PROPERTY OWNER. 

   a) Staff Presentation 

 Principal Planner Keith Boyle presented the staff report recommending                     
approval.  The proposed minor land division allows the creation of four industrial 
parcels for the development of up to four industrial buildings totaling no more 
than 130,000 square feet.  This is the first phase of the Manabe Ow Business 
Park.  The proposed parcels are consistent with the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and the Manabe Ow Business Park Specific Plan.   After the lots are 
purchased, modified Design Permits will have to be submitted for each lot when 
a final design is determined for each parcel.  Letters from Dave Swaggert, 
representative for George Couch and from the Ow family were distributed earlier 
to the Minor Land Division Committee. 

 b) Applicant Presentation 



  ADOPTED  MINUTES 

P:\MLDPAKET\mldpkt-13\Minutes 041513.doc      Page 2 of 3 

 

   Chair Tavantzis stated the applicant was present to answer questions.  

 She asked the Committed if they had any questions or needed clarification on 
any of the materials that was presented. 

 The Committee had none.     

 c) Public Hearing 

   Chair Tavantzis opened the Public Hearing. 

 William Laster, residing at 11 Paseo Drive, asked about the roof height and   
traffic mitigations; expressing his concerns with both.  

 Chair Tavantzis replied that the maximum height was determined by the                
Specific Plan so it is in compliance. 

 Mr. Boyle replied at this stage of the Specific Plan standard traffic fees are 
required.  The Environmental Impact Report does not include specific 
requirements until after 700,000 square feet is developed.  At the buildout of 
130,000 square feet, up to 1,500 vehicles are estimated per day.  Based on the 
Traffic Study, there are no designated improvements to address the impact.     

 Chair Tavantzis indicated the Council did hear the residents’ concerns about 
traffic at the approval of the Specific Plan but it was approved and that decision 
cannot be undone. 

 Colleen Wallau, residing at 3 Las Flores Street, and Co-Chair of Sea View 
Ranch questioned the site map she received with the public hearing notice that 
shows a 300 square foot perimeter.  She also wanted to make certain that the 
four parcels will be in compliance with the Specific Plan.  They must be 
consistent; no difference in usage including no overnight usage.  Will these 
parcels be sold prior to the construction of the buildings? 

 Mr. Boyle stated the 300 foot perimeter applies to the standard requirement for 
noticing all property owners only within the 300 foot radius of the proposed 
project site.  The Specific Plan does not allow overnight usage and the parcels 
must be consistent with the Specific Plan otherwise they must go through a 
different process.  The parcels could be sold prior to construction in order to 
generate income for the improvements. 

 Chair Tavantzis stated the owner is not required to notify the City if they sell, 
lease, or rent the parcels. 

 Peg Flechtner, residing at 31 Vista Verde Circle, asked if the 130,000 square 
feet is not reached would the access to Loma Vista Drive remain opened 
indefinitely. She also asked if there is a demand and interest in purchasing of 
the parcels. 

 Mr. Boyle replied yes, the road would remain open if the 130,000 threshold is 
not met. 

 Chair Tavantzis stated she does not foresee the development stopping at 
130,000 square feet.   

 Mr. Ow stated that they have been talking to multiple companies but nothing has 
been determined yet. 

 

  





WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

Officer Skip Prigge 
January 25, 2014 

served at W.P.D. for 18 years. During his time here, he has served as a Patrol 
Narcotic K-9 Officer with his K-9 partner "Sara," Gang Detective, Gang 
Suppression Officer and as a Direct Action Response Team Officer. Officer 
worked in an undercover capacity for the Santa Cruz County Narcotics 
and 

Officer Skip Prigge was one of our highest decorated officers. He 
awards and medals from our department for his devoti()n to duty; and 

Officer Prigge testified numerous times as a court rcc()gnized 
Firearms and Arson; and 

Officer Prigge has received many awards including: an Exccptic>nal 
involvement on the Department's Direct Action Response Team 
and also received an Exceptional Duty Medal for Narcotic frw••t>t~'""'' 

received a Combat Cross Medal and Life Saving Medal on 
stopping an armed suspect who was on a 2-day crime spree 
home invasion robberies, carjackings and shootings. Officer 
the suspect's life by performing first aid after the suspect was 
gunfire with police; and 

received an Exceptional Duty Medal on 09/29/2010, for Operation TAG 
Graffiti) were he identified and arrested 35 taggers who vandalized property 
across Santa Cruz County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor or the City of Watsonville, in the State of Califomia, on 
behalf of the City Council do hereby praise Officer Skip Prigge for eighteen years of loyalty and dedicated 

to the Watsonville community and the Watsonville Police Department and extend best wishes to him in 
his. r~~~ent. and continued success of all his future endeavors. 

,4~:'tA \ 
14'~1 ·o·r. ,, I IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 
"?\·~ ,,'/ , ' caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville to be affixed this 

~ ·~·1 \ ,
1 

\ I'\ '.l I) · 25•h day of January, two thousand and fou11een. 

J:.11 ' ~ • ~ '"~' ~ -·~···- ~ 
Karina Cervantez, Mayor 

SONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 



WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

1&<><Jlamati<>n 

Ed Banks 
2013 Man of the Year 

January 25, 2014 

Ed Banks, a native Californian, was born in San Francisco and grew up, in a family of 8, in 
La Selva Beach. He attended Aptos Elementary School and is a 1966 graduate of 
Watsonville High School. He received his A.A. degree from Cabrillo College in 1968 and 
Bachelor of Arts degree from Sonoma State University in 1970; and 

His military commitment commenced as a Naval Reservist in November of 1970, being 
stationed at Flag Administrative Unit, Naval Air Station Barbers Point, Hawaii. His active 
duty assignment concluded in August of 1972, and ultimate honorable discharge in August of 
1975;and 

Ed's community service has included serving on the following organizations' board of 
directors: Insurance Brokers and Agents of the West, Independent Insurance Agents & 
Brokers of Watsonville (past president), Watsonville National Little League, Watsonville 
YMCA, Pajaro Valley Chamber of Commerce, Rotary Club of Watsonville (past President 
1993-94), Monterey Bay Bank and Watsonville Firefighters' Association; and 

He was a reserve lieutenant for the Watsonville Fire Department from 1981 to 2006. During 
his 25-year career with the fire department, he successfully completed courses of study in Fire 
Command Operations and Fire Cause Determination at the National Fire Academy, 
Emmitsburg, Maryland; and 

A few of his accomplishments are: Active Rotarian, Active in the establishment of the 
Watsonville Fire Station Museum, served on numerous boards, chaired numerous fundraisers 
and participates in many others; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor of the City of Watsonville, in the State of California, hereby 
recognizes the community service and excellent work of Ed Banks on this the occasion on this day, January 
25, 2014 and congratulate him on being chosen "2013 Man of the Year" in the City of Watsonville in the 
county of Santa Cruz California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville to be affixed 
this 251

h day of January, two thousand and fourteen. 

If 

ATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 



ft<><Jla~ati<>n 
Nevenka Radich 

2013 Woman of the Year 
January 25, 2014 

. WHEREAS, Nevenka's accomplishments at Watsonville High School as a volunteer and a 
teacher improved the lives of many students. She has taught them how to work 
and get ahead in the retail world; and 

WHEREAS, coming to this country as an immigrant, she encouraged those students that an 
education was the way to success. She also helped them through the transition of 
a second language; and 

WHEREAS, she has particularly influenced hundreds of students, stressing the importance of 
strong personal financial and professional business/retail skills; and 

WHEREAS, Nevenka demonstrates the importance of volunteering to her children and her 
students. You can see her crew volunteering at the Fly.· In, County Fair and many 
Watsonville High School Reunions just to name a.few; and 

WHEREAS, she has truly been an inspiration to many generations of students and has 
dedicated her life to being a volunteer, a teacher and a role model; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor of the City of Watsonville, in the State of 
California, hereby recognizes the community service and excellent work of Nevenka Radich on 
this the occasion on this day, January 25, 2014 and congratulate her on being chosen "2013 
Women of the Year" in the City of Watsonville in the county of Santa Cruz California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 
hand and caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville 
to be affixed this 25th day of January, two thousand· 
and fourteen. 

ATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 



Clint & Karen Miller 
Lifetime Achievement 

January 25, 2014 

WHEREAS, Entering their 61 st year fanning in the Pajaro Valley. Clint started fanning in 1953 and 
was chosen "Fanner of the Year" in 1985. A modem-day grower who has given back to 
the community, both Clint and Karen have been local luminaries over the years. The 
Millers were the first couple to receive the Western Growers Award of Honor. Karen 
Miller was the first female recipient to be honored; and 

WHEREAS, The Millers are well respected by their colleagues, employees, community, and other 
civic leaders and many politicians. They have been recognized with countless state, 
county and city awards and honors. Through bipartisan political activism, community 
support, outreach and absolute .enthusiasm for the industry; and 

WHEREAS, the Millers continue to be among the industry's most well-respected and admired 
ambassadors; and 

WHEREAS, Clint was named the Pajaro Valley Chamber of Commerce's 1996 Man of the Year for 
spearheading the construction of a park in Pajaro, Karen shares Clint's dedication to 
community issues. Karen Miller was recognized in 1996 as Monterey County's 
Outstanding Ag Woman of the Year, F.0.0.D. Crops (now known as Ag Against 
Hunger) Outstanding Woman of the Year and 27th Assembly District California State 
Woman of the Year; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor of the City of Watsonville, in the State of California, 
hereby recognizes the community service and excellent work of, Clint & Karen Miller, on this the 
occasion on this day, January 25, 2014, and congratulate them on being chosen for the "Lifetime 
Achievement" recognition in the City of Watsonville in the county of Santa Cruz California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville to be affixed 
this 25th day of January, two thousand and fourteen. 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 



Monterey Bay Youth Outdoor Day 
2013 Event of the Year 
January 25, 2014 

WHEREAS, Monterey Bay Youth Outdoor day is a nonprofit organization dedicated to educating 
youth about the countless outdoor activities available in our area. MBYOD believes that 
we live in a unique and amazing· region and because of that it is important to teach our 
children to cherish it. They are looking to encourage youth to be healthy through outdoor 
activities and build a better place for the future; and 

WHEREAS, The Monterey Bay Youth Outdoors event was aimed at helping child and parents find 
outdoor activities to enjoy, and to remind people of all of the outdoor activities our region 
offers; and 

WHEREAS, Monterey Bay Youth Outdoor Day fills the Santa Cruz County Fairgrounds with 
demonstrations of, and information on everything from fishing, archery, BMX bikes, and 
skateboarding, to rock climbing and wildlife conservation; and 

WHEREAS, Hands-on activities ran the gamut, from a skateboarding area set up for the event to an 
archery range and insect identification. The event also comes with a budget-friendly 
admission price, free; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor of the City of Watsonville, in the State of Californi!l, 
hereby recognizes the community service and excellent work of Monterey Bay Youth Outdoor Day on 
this the occasion on this day, Januaiy 25, 2014 and congratulate them on being chosen "2013 Event of the 
Year" in the City of Watsonville in the county of Santa Cruz California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville to be affixed 
this 251

h day of January, two thousand and fourteen. 

SONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 



Pajaro Valley Shelter Services 
2013 Organization of the Year 

January 25, 2014 

WHEREAS, The Pajaro Valley Shelter Services aspires to be a national model program that helps 
women, children, and families end the causes and cycles of homelessness- one family 
at a time. By lifting their dignity, identifying their batTiers and helping to set their 
goals, homeless families will develop the skills and attitudes necessary to move on to 
stable housing and hp.proved personal and economic self-sufficiency; and 

WHEREAS, The Pajaro Valley Shelter Services mission is to assist homeless women, 
children and families in obtaining stable housing through temporary shelter 
and services; and 

WHEREAS, Pajaro Valley Shelter Services began in 1983 under the umbrella of Catholic Charities 
in Watsonville, California, as an emergency shelter for women and children. In 1984 
it obtained its own nonprofit status and purchased a building used as an emergency 
shelter; and 

WHEREAS, Pajaro Valley Shelter Services have a three-way approach: providing 
temporary shelter for homeless single women and women with children; 
providing transitional housing for homeless families; and providing hands
on case management which includes a savings program, education and 
refetTals to community resources; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor of the City of Watsonville, in the State of California, 
hereby recognizes the community service and excellent work of, Pajaro Valley Shelter Services, on this 
the occasion on this day, January 25, 2014, and congratulate them on being chosen "2013 Organization of 
the Year" in the City of Watsonville in the county of Santa Cruz California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville to be affixed 
this 25th day of January, two thousand and fourteen. 

ATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 



RV's Computers, Inc. 
2013 Business of the Year 

January 25, 2014 

WHEREAS, RV's Computers takes the complex landscape of information technology, and simply 
makes it work; and 

WHEREAS, Their team is comprised of highly trained individuals ready to help you streamline your 
business. Their team designs, implements, and supports various technology solutions 
tailored to your specific business requirements; and 

WHEREAS, With over a decade of experience, RV's Computers, focus on building a long-term 
partnership with each client; and 

WHEREAS, Their team always takes into consideration cost, quality, and functionality to 
provide the right IT solutions. They are passionate about facilitating their clients' 
brown and profitability, and they work very hard to ensure their client's strategic 
and tactical goals are aligned with the IT solutions they provide; and 

WHEREAS, RV's is a company with a strong reputation in the Monterey Bay area and it's a 
leader in providing IT solutions for small and large companies; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Karina Cervantez, Mayor of the City of Watsonville, in the State of California, 
hereby recognizes the excellent work of RV's Computers, Inc. on this the occasion on this day, January 
25, 2014 and congratulate them on being chosen "2013 Business of the Year" in the City of Watsonville 
in the aunty of Santa Cruz California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
and caused the Seal of the City of Watsonville to be affixed 
this 25th day of January, two thousand and fourteen. 

SONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 


	Agenda
	Item 4.1 Minutes
	Item 4.2 Fiber Optic MOU Report
	Item 4.2 Fiber Optic MOU Resolution
	Item 4.3 Hwy 1 Harkins Sl Project Report
	Item 8.1 Chromium 6 Resolution
	Item 8.2 FEMA Update Report
	Item 6.1a Plastic Foam Products Report
	Item 6.1e Plastic Foam Products  Ordinance
	Item 6.2a Reusable Bags Report
	Item 6.2e Reusable Bags Ordinance
	Item 8.3a Initiative District Appt Clerk Report
	Item 8.3b Initiative District Appt Attorney Report
	Item 10.2a Report of Disbursements
	Item 10.2b Information Items



